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January 23, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Your Excellency and Members of the Council:

REOUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice to enter into subgrants with the subrecipients
listed below, in an amount not to exceed $133,000, U.S. Department of Justice, Office of
Violence Against Women, Federal Fiscal Year 2023 and 2024 Violence Against Women Act
(VAWA) Formula Grants for the purpose of providing services for victims of domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking, effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval through December 31, 2025. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in account number 02-20-20-201510-5587, Department of Justice,
VAWA23, Grants Federal as follows;

Class/Account Subrecipient Vendor #

SFY 2025

Amount

072-500575 603 Legal Aid 216800-B001 $40,000

072-500574 Manchester Police Department 177433-B012 $93,000

Total $133,000

EXPLANATION

These subgrants will be funded from U.S. Department of Justice, Office on Violence
Against Women, Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) formula grants, Federal Fiscal Year 2023
and/or 2024. The grant funding focuses specifically to deterring and responding to crimes of
domestic violence, sexual assault, dating violence, and stalking. Statutory requirements of the
STOP VAWA grant program are that agencies representing law enforcement will be allocated at
least 25% of the award; prosecution offices will be allocated at least 25% of the award; and
victim service providers will be allocated at least 30% of the award (with at least 10% of that to
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be distributed to culturally specific community-based services and 20% to sexual assault
victims). Lastly, 5% of the funding must be allocated to the courts.

The subrecipients listed above have received previous VAWA awards from DOJ. All
were selected previously through a Request for Proposal solicitation and now represent core
services of a list of providers for the State of New Hampshire in the area of violence against
women services. These awards will allow the organizations to continue to provide vital services
upon which New Hampshire's citizens have come to rely.

Services and positions being supported through the funding include, but are not limited
to, specially trained domestic violence and sexual assault prosecutors, investigators, legal
advocacy and victim advocates at county attomey offices, police departments, nonprofits, and
training ofjudges and court staff throughout the State of New Hampshire.

In the event that federal funds are no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Thank you for
your consideration.

Respectfully^ubmitted,

John M. Formella

Attomey General

#4862989



FORM NUMBERG-1 (versfoo 11/2021)

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. Identification and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name
New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address
1 Granite Place, South

. Concord. NH 03301 „ .

13. Grantee Name

603 Legal Aid

, 1.4. Grantee Address
93 N. State Street, Suite 200
Concord, NH 03301 !

13 Grantee Phone U

(603)224-3333x603 ;
1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-201510-5587-

072-500575

1.7: Completion Date
12/31/2025 1

1.8. Grant Limitation
$40,000

1.9. Grant Ofllcer for State Agency
Kathleen Carr

! I.IO. State Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-1234

If Gnuitee is a municipality or village district: "By tlgntiig this form we certify that we have complied with any public |
mMtfnoreaairefnentforacceDt8nceofUibEniotiRcludlnffifBDDlicableRSA3l:9S-b.".. . ... J

1.11. GranteciSignat^ 1 i.ll. Name & Title of Grantee Signer 1

Grantee Signature-I- Naime & Title of Grantee Signer 2

Grantee signature 3 Name & Title of Grantee Signer 3

1.13 State Agency Slgnature(s) 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)
Z?. Thomas p. Kaempfer, Deputy Director of Admir

1.15. Approval by Attorai^ General ̂ orm^Sutetanceand Execution)(ifG & Capproval required) ̂

By: ^ Assistant Attorney General, On: 1 /16 / 25

1.16^ Approval by Govemor and Coancll (if applicable)

By: On: ,

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified In block I.l (hereinafter referred to as *the State'*), the Grantee
identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as *thc Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and
more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work
being hereinafter referred to as "the Project")-
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'4.

4J.

4.2.

3.

1.1.

5.2.

3.3!

3.4.

5,3.:

7.

7.1.

7.2.

S.

I.I.

1.2.

1.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA CQVFpEI^, Except 13 othcnvise ipecirKally provided for herein, the
Cnntee shall perform the Project in. and whh respect to. the State of New
Hampshire, _ ^
■EFFECnVE DAtE' CQ^ETION OF PROjECT.'
This A|ieemcni, end all oUtptions of the paititit hcrcunder, shall become
cfTective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement ^ the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hmpshire if retptirad (block 1.16), or upon 9.3;..
signature by the State Agency as shown in block l,i4C^Enbcive Daie'^
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, (he Project, including all reports 9.4,,
required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the date in
block 1.7 (hereinafterreferred to u"the Completioo DateT),-. _
CRANTAMQUNt; LIMITATION ONAMQUNT-VOUCHERS-PAYMENT;.
The Grant Amount is identified mid more particuiaHy dcscnbed in EXHIBIT C.
aoschcd hereto.
The manner of, and schedule of payment dtall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C.-
in accordance with the provisioRi set forth ia EXtllBITC, artd in consideration 10.,
of (he saiislhctory performance of the Project, as deteimihed tjy the State, and as
limited by subpcuagraph 5:5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Gram AmounL; The Smte shall withhold from the atrtount otherwise
payable to the Grantee under this subparagtiph 3,3 those sums required, or
permitted, to be withheld puntuam to N.I^-RSA 60:7 through 7-c
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be (he only, and the ecmpklc
payment to the Grantee for all expenses, of. whatever nature, incurred by the
Grantee in the performance hereof, and shaJl be the only, and the complete,
compcisstion to the Crintee for the Project.- The State shall have no liabililt» to II.
the Grantee odter than the Grant Amount lUI.'
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and rMtwilhstanding

unexpected crrcumstances. in no event shall the total of ail payments authorized. I I.I.I
or actually made, hcreunder exceed the Grant Itmilaiion set forth in block 1.8 of I hi .-2
these gen^ provisions.. ILL}
COMPLIANCE BV- GRANTEE WITH >LAWS AND REGULATIONS: in 11.1,4
connection with the performance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all 11.2.;
statutes, bws regulations, and orders of fbderal, state, county, or munktpaJ
authorities which shall impose any obligations or duly upon the Grantee, including I I.2.J
the acquisition ofu^and all necessary permits and R^ 31-9S-b..
RECORDS anclACCOUNTS-
Between the EITective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the gram terms of the Agnky, the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounts of, all expenses mcurrcd in connection with the I M.2
Project, including, but not limited to, cosb of administrailon, transportation,
insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and services. Such accounte
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar ^uments.
Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years alter (he Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the gram terms or the Agency pursuant to 11.2;3
subparagnph 7.1. at any time during the Grantee's normal business houn. and u
ohet) as the shall demand, the Grantre thai) make tvaiisbie to the State all i }.2;4
records pertaining to maitcn covered by this Agreemeni The Grantee shall
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits 12.
Of all contracts. Invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (u that 12.1,
term is hereinafter defin^), arxl other mformaiion relating to all matters covered
by ths Agreemcot»,As u^ in ihb paragraph, "Grantee" includes all persons,
natural or ftciional, alTiliated with. controlM by. or under common ownership
with, the cr«i^ idemificd as the Grantee fai block IJ of these provbiorts
PER.qflNNF.L.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to perform 12,2...
the Project The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged In the Project shall
be qualified to perform such Project arid shall be properly liceiued and authorized
to perform such Project under ail applicable bwa .
The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not permit'any subcontractor, subgrantee, 12.3..
or other person, firm or corporation with whom it b engaged in a combined effort
to perform' the Project (O hire any person who has a contractual rebtionship with
the Static, or who b a State ofncet or employee, elected or appointod.
The Cram OffKer shall be the representative of the State heteunder. In the event
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of ihb Agreement by the Grant ]2;4.r
Officer, and his/her decision on any dbpute, shall be fmaL
DATA' RFTTNTION OF DATA' AGCES&.
As used in thb Agreement the word "data" shall mein all mformauon and (hit^ 13.
developed or obtained during (he performanca df.'or Acquired or devetoped by
reason of. th'rs Agreement including, but not limited to. all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video reeordings, p'lctorial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic represenuUon^

computer programs, eomputcr printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, peper, and
documents, all whether finbhed or unfinbheil.
Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date (he Grantee shall grant to
the State, or any person designated by k, unresirtcicd acr^ to all data for
examination, duplication, publkaibn, trarulation. sale, disposal, or for any other
purpose whatsoever. .
No datt shall be subject to copyright In the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and after the Effectrve Date all data, and an)- property which has been received
from the Slate or purchased wkh funds provided for that purpose under (his
Agreemeni, shall be the property of (he Stale, and shall be re turned lo the State
upon demand or upon lermination of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
Shalt first occur.
The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, discbso, dishibute and^otherwire use, in whole or in port, all data.
CQNOmONAL 'NATUfe'OR AQRF.RMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
(hb Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hcreunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. are contingent upon
die availability or continued approprblkin offunds.and in no event shall the State
be liable for any paymems hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
funds. In the event ofa reduction or termination of those funds, the State shall
have the right 10 widdtold payment until such funds become avaitable. ifever, and
shall have (he right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee rwtice of such termination.
EVENT OF DEFAULT:- REMEDIES
Any t^ or more of the following acts or omissions of (he Grantee shall constitute
an event of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of Default"]:
Failure to perfonn the Project satisfactorily or on schedule: or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records requited hereunder. or
Failure to perfonn any of (he other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon (he occurrence ofany Event of Default, the State may take any one, or more,
or ail. of Che following actions:
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying (he Event of Dcfauh end requiring it
to be remedied within, in the absence ofa greater or lesser specification of time,
thif^ (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Defaull b not
tkneiy remedM, terminate thu Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Grantee irotice of termination; and
Give the Grantee a wrinen notice specifying the Event of Default and suspending
all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the portion of (he
Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Grantee during the period
from the date of such rtoiice until such time as the State determines ihta the
Grantee has cured the Event of Dcfbult shall never be paid to the Grantee; and
Set offagainst any other obligation the Slate may owe to the Grantee any damages
the Slate suffers by reason of any Event of Dcfautt, and
Treat (he agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies ai law or in equity,
or both..

In the evemofany early tcrminetien of thb Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver to the Grant Officer, not
later than fifteen (IS) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
re ferred to as the "Termination Report") describing in dcoiJ all Project Work
perfbrmed, and the Grant Amoum earned, to and including the date oftermination.
In the event of Termination under psragiaphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provbions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
(he Grantee to receive thai portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these gerKraJ
prov'isiona, the tq^oval of such a Termination Report by the Stati; shall in no
event relieve the Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Grantee's breach of its obligations
hereunder..
NcKwithsisnding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or,
except where notice default has been given to the Grantee hereurtder, the Grantee,
rr^ terminate thb Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days wrinen notice.
CQNFtlCT QF'INTEREST' No ofTicer, member of employee of the Grantee,
and no representative, officer or employee of (he State of New Hampshire or of
the governing body of the locality or localities in whkh the Prnjeci is to be
performed, who cxercbcs any functions or rtsponsibilliies in the review or
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Bpprevti ofche undenaking or'canying oui of such Project, shall participate in 17.2.
any decbton rdaiing to (his Agreement which afreets hb or Iw personal interest
or (he interes of any corporation, partnership, or assoclatttfl'in which he or she
b directly or indirectly intercstietl. oor shall he or tire have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirc^ In thb Agreement orttie prooeeds thereof.

14; GRAI^EE-S^eiiATlbSt TOtfHE^isT^^ In (he performasco of thb
Agreement the Crentee, Its employees, and any subcontractor or lubgrintee of IS.
the Cantec are fat all respects ladepcndeni contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of the Statti Neither the Grantee nor any of its ofTicen,
empio>'eet. agents, members. sidieoRtraccorsorsubgrantees, shall haveauthoriiy
to bind the State nor arc they entitled to any of the benefits, woilcmen's .
compensaiufl or emoiumenb provided bf the Slate to its employees.; '

15. ,ASStGNMtifn-'AND:sUBGQNTRACJS.. The Grantee shall not assign, or 19.-
otherwise transfer any interest in thb Agrnment withou the prior written ■
consent of the Stale. None of the Project Wotfc sl^ be subcontracted or
subgranied by the Grantee other than as set forth iti Exhibii B without the prior
written consent of the Sate. 30.-

16. iNDEMNIFlCATlON. The Grantee shall deftnd. indemnl^ end hold harmless
the Sate, hs oITiccts arid employees, from end agaittf any arid ail leases sufTered
by the Saa, la ofTkers and employees, and any and all claiiro, liabitiiies or
pcnahtes atseded agaiiui the Sate, ia ofTicers and emplbyees, by or on behalf 21.
of any person, on accoum of, based on, lesulUng from, arbing out of(or which
may be claimed to arbe out oQ the actt or omissions of the Grantee or
subcontncUK, or sabgtamee or other agent of (he Grantee. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, noting herein conained shall be deemed to constibrte a waiver ofthe
sovereign immunity cfthe Sate, whkh immunity u hereby reserved to the Sate.
Thb covenant shall survive the termmation ofthb agreement 22.-

17. . fySURANC&.,
17.1 The Grantee shall, at its own eitpcnK, obain end mainain in force, or shall 23.

require any subcootiactor. subgrantee or assignee perfbrming Project work tt
obain and mainain in force, both fbr die bcnefk of the Stae. the (bliowing
insurance:

I7.|j Statutory workers' compensation and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged in the performance ofthe Project and

17.1.2 General liablllty insumnceagajnstaiidainbofbt^iJy injuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence ind-$2.000.0C0
aggregaa for bodily injury or dead) any one incident, and $500,000 for property
damage fai ai^ etc incident: and

. The poitcici described in subparagraph 17.1 ofthb paragnph shall be the standard
form employed in the Siaaof New Hampshire, bsued by underwriters acceptable
to the Saa, and authorized to do business in the Sate of New Hampshire Grantee
shall fbmish to the Suie, certiriciies of insurance for all rcnewaKs) of insurartce
requiitd under this Agieement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of ̂hinsuntnce policy,'.
' WAfVPR QF' RR FAGH' No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof

after any Event of Default shall be dnmed a waiver of its righb with r^ard to
that Event, or.any subsequent Event. No expross waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provbions hereof upon any further or other default on the pan of the Grantee.
NOTICE. A^ notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly ddtvered or given at the time of mailing by cenirted mail, postage
prepaid, in a United Sates Post Oftice addressed to the ponies at the addresses
nrsi above given,
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in WTiling signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by (he Governor and Council of the Staa
of New Hampshire, if r^uired or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OP ACRC^ Thb Agreement Shall te
construed iti accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of (he parties and their respective successors
and assignccs^vThe captions and contents of the 'subject" blank are used only as
a matar ofconvenience, and are not to be considered a pan of this Agreemetti or
to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and thb Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. Thb Agreement, which may be executed in a mimbcr
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed en original, constitutes the entire
agreement and WKlerstanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and undersandings relating hereto.
SPFriAI-PRDVISIONSs The additional or modifying provismns set forth in
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated as part of thb agreement.
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KXHIBITA

Special Conditions
Grant # 15JOVW-24-GG-005I3-STOP

603 Legal Aid as the Grantee (hereinafter referred to as "Subrccipicnt") shall be compliant at all
times with the terms, conditions and specifications detailed below, which are subject to annual
review.

1. The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful access
to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes discrimination
on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may entail providing
language assistance services, including oral and written translation when necessary. The U.S.
Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them comply with these
requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at www.lcp.gov.

2. The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the Subrecipient
on the grounds of race, color, religion, nationaTorigin, sex, age, or disability, a copy of the
finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants Management
Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs,
810 7th Street, NW. Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional information regarding your
obligations under civil rights please reference the state website at
httpy/www.doj.nh.gov/grants-management/civil-fights.htm and understand if you are awarded
funding from this office, civil rights coitipliance will be monitored by this office, and the Office
for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

3. The Subrecipient will comply (and will require any subrecipicnts or contractors to comply) with
any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, whidt may include the Omnibus Crime Control and
Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34U.S.C. § 10228(c)); the Victims ofCrime Act (34 U.S.C. §
20110(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of2002 (34 U.S.C. § 11182(b));
the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § I2291(b)(13)); the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42
U.S.C. § 2000d); the Indian Civil Rights Act (25 U.S.C. §§ 1301-1303); the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. §§
12131 -34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681, 1683, 1685-86); and the
Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07), It will also comply with Ex. Order
13279, Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and Community Organizations; Executive
Order 13559, Fundamental Principles and Policymaking Criteria for Partnerships with
Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood Organizations; and the DOJ implementing regulations at
28 C.F.R. Part 38.

4. Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that paid for
similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is S650 per day or $81.25 per hour.
When the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a proportionate hourly rate (excluding travel and
subsistence costs), a written prior approval is required. Prior approval requests require additional
justification.

Initials: ̂
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KXHfBIT A

Special Coadidoos
Graot# 15JOVW-24-GG-00513-STOP

5. The Subrccipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH Department of
Justice (NHDOJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be billed to any federal or
state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or supervised while at the NHDOJ
for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the NH DOJ.

6. The Subrccipient understands that grants arc funded for the grant award period noted on the grant award
document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future years.

7. Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award arc material requirements of the award. Compliance with any
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the subrccipient that relate to conduct
during the period of performance also is a material requirement of this award.

By accepting this aw^ on behalf of the subrccipient, the authorized subrccipient official accepts
all material requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally executed by the
authorized recipient official, all assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the
subrccipient that relate to conduct during the period of performance.

Failure to comply with any one or more of these award requirements, whether a condition set out
in full below, a condition incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification
related to conduct during the award period may result in the Office on Violence Against Women
("OVW*) or the NH Dept. of Justice ("NHDOJ") taking appropriate action with respect to the
subrccipient and the award. Among other things, OVW or NHDOJ may withhold award funds,
disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. DOJ, including OVW and NHDOJ, also may
take other legal action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this
award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution

^  (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. I027I-10273), and also may lead
to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise
(mc!uding,under31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its
terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the
maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held, instead, that the provision is utterly invalid
or unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severablc from this award.

8. Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements and DOJ Grants Financial Guide

The subrccipient agrees to comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by the
Department of Justice (DOJ) in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200 Uniform
Requirements"), and the current edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted on the

Initials;
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RXHIBIT A

Special CooditioDS
Grant # 15JOVW-24-GG-00513-STOP

OVW website, including any updated version that may be posted during the period of
performance.

The recipient also agrees that all financial records pertinent to this award, including the general
accounting ledger and all supporting documents, are subject to agency review throughout the life
of the award, during the close-out process, and for three years after submission of the final
Federal Financial Report (SF-425) or as long as the records are retained, whichever is longer,
pursuant to 2 C-F.R- 200.334, 200.337.

9. Requirement to report potentiaDy duplicative funding

If the subrecipient currently has odier active awards of federal funds, or if the subrecipient
receives any other award of federal funds during the period of performance for this award, the
subrecipient promptly must determine whether funds from any of those other federal awards
have b«n, are being, or arc to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical cost
items for which funds are provided under this award.

If so, the subrecipient must promptly notify the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit in writing of
the potential duplication, and, if so requested by the NHDOJ, must seek a budget modification or
change-of-project-scope to eliminate any inappropriate duplication of funding

10. Requirements related to System for Award Management and unique entity identiflers

The subrecipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award
Management (SAM), currently accessible at https:/Avww.sain.gov. This includes applicable
requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as maintaining current information in
SAM.

The subrecipient also must comply with applicable rc^'ctions on subawards ("subgrants") to
first tier subrecipicnts (first-tier "subgrantecs"), Including restrictions on subawards to entities
that do not acquire and provide the unique entity identifier required for SAM registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers (UEI) are
posted on the OVW website at https://www.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions (Award
Condition: Requirements related to System for Award Management (SAM) and unique entity
identifiers), and arefincorporatcd by reference here.

11. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

The subrecipient must ensure thai, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United
States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or any
subrecipient at any tier) properly verifies the employment eligibility of the individual who is
being hired, cpnsistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. § 1324a(aX I) and (2).

The details of the recipient's obligations under this condition arc posted on the OVW website at
https://www.justicc.gov/ovw/award-conditions (Award Condition: Employment eligibility.
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verification for hiring under award) and arc incorporated by reference here.

12. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personalty identifiable information
(pn)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must have written procedures in place to respond
in the event of an actual or imminent breach (as defined In 0MB M-17-12) if it (or a
subrecipient)- 1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or
disposes of personally identifiable information (PII) (as defined in 2 C.F.R. 200.1) within the
scope of an OVW grant-funded program or activity, or 2) uses or operates a Federal information
system (as defined in 0MB Circular A-130).

The subrecipicnfs breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent
breach of PII to an OVW Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence of an
actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach.

In the event of an actual, or imminent, breach of Personally Identifiable Information of a U.S
Department of Justice funded program or activity by a subrecipient, the subrecipient must have a
procedure in place that indicates that the Grants Management Unit will be notified of the breach
by the end of the business day (4:00 PM EST) that the breach was reported. An c-mail will be
sent to Grants@doj.nh.gov, which e-mails every staff member in the Grants Management Unit,
notifying the Unit of the breach. The GMU Administrator, or designec, will respond to the
subrecipient*s e-mail notifying receipt of the notification by the end of the business day that it
-was received, if the subrecipient does not receive a confirmation e-mail from the GMU the
subrecipient shall call the NH Department of Justice main number, (603)271-3658, and request
to speak to the GMU and report the breach.

Subreclpients must have written procedures that document the process of notifying the GMU in
the event of a PII breach. Written procedures will be verified during onsite monitoring's
conducted by the GMU.

13. Unreasonable re^rictlons on competition under the award; association with federal
government.

No recipient (or subrecipient, at any tier) may (in any procurement transaction) discriminate
against any person or entity on the basis of such person or entity's status as an "associate of the
federal government" (or on the basis of such person or entity's status as a parent, affiliate, or
subsidiary of such an associate), except as expressly set out in 2 C.F.R. 200.319(a) or as
specifically authorized by DOJ.

The details of the recipient's obligations under this condition are posted on the OVW website at
httpsyAvww.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions (Award Condition: Unreasonable restrictions on
competition under the award; association with federal government) and are incorporated by
reference here.
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14. Rcqoirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking In persons (including
reporting requirements and OVW authority to terminate award)

The recipient, and any subrecipicnt ("subgrantcc") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements (including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct
related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrccipicnts
("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of the
recipient or of any subrecipient.

The details of the subrcclpicnt's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in
persons are posted on the OVW web site at https:/Avww.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions
(Award Condition; Prohibited conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in
persons (including reporting requirements and OVW authority to terminate award)), and are
incorporated by reference here.

15. D^ermlnatlohs of suitability to Interact with participating minors

This condition applies to this award if it is indicated in the application for the award (as approved
by DOi) (or in the application for any subaward at any ticrX the DOJ funding announcement
(solicitation), or an associated federal statute that a purpose of some or all of the activities to be
carried out under the award (whether by the recipient or a subrecipicnt at any tier) is to benefit a
set of individuals under 18 years of age.

The recipient, and any subrecipicnt at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before
certain individuals may interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of
an individual's employment ̂ tus. The details of this requirement arc posted on the OVW web
site at https*y/www.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditlons (Award condition: Determination of
suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with participating
minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

16. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of
conferences, meetings, trainings, and other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantce") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
laws, regulations, policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior
approval and reporting requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for
expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of food
and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award
appears on the OVW website at https://www.justicc.gov/ovw/conference-planning.

17. OVW Training Guiding Principles

The recipient understands and agrees that any training or training materials developed or
delivered with funding provided under this award must adhere to the OVW Training Guidjnj
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Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees, available at
https:/Avww.justice.gov/ovw/rcsources-and-fiaqs-grantecs#Dlscrctionary.

18. Effect of failure to address audit Issom

The subrecipient understands and agrees that the NHDOJ (arid OJP or OVW, as appropriate)
may withhold award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as determined by the
NHDOJ) the subrecipient does hot satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues from
audits required by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other
outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits, investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

19. Potential Imposition of additional requirements

The subrecipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the
NHDOJ (and OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this award, if
the subrecipient is designated as "high- risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

20. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondlscrimination - 28
CF.R- Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantcc") at any tier, must comply witb all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpari
E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal employment opportunity program.

21. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28
C.F.R. Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantec") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 (amended effective April 3, 2024),

Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of
discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or
refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements
that relate to engaging in or conducting explicitly religious activities and requires that recipients
and subrccipicnts that are social service providers provide written notice to beneficiaries or
prospective beneficiaries of certain protections as described in 28 C.F.R. 38.6(b).

22. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28
C J.R. Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantcc") at any tier, must comply with alt applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in
certain "education programs."
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23. Restrictions on "lobbying" and policy development

in general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds may not be used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, in support of the enactment,
repeal, modification or adoption of any law, regulation or policy, at any level of government, in
order to avoid violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1913. The recipient, or any subrecipient ("subgrantee")
may, however, use federal funds to collaborate with and provide information to federal, state,
local, tribal and territorial public officials and agencies to develop and implement policies and
develop and promote state, local, or tribal legislation or model codes designed to reduce or
eliminate domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking (as those terms are
defined in 34 U.S.C. § 12291(a)) when such collaboration and provision of information is
consistent with the activities otherwise authorized under this grant program.

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OVW from being used by the
recipient, or any subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence)
a federal agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them)
with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract,
subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing, extending, or modifying any
such award. Sec 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an exception
that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the subrecipient is to
contact the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit for guidance and may not proceed without the
express prior written approval of NHDOJ.

24. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on ttie use of federal funds for
tbb fiscal year

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
restrictions on the use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent
restrictions, for each fiscal year, are set out at https*yAvww.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions
(Award Condition: General appropriations-law restrictions on use of federal award funds), and
arc incorporated by reference here. Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of
federal funds by a recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an
appropriations-law restriction, the subrecipient is to contact the NHDOJ Grants Management
Unit for guidance and may not proceed wthout the express prior written approval of NHDOJ.

25. Reporting Potential Fraod, Waste, and Abuse, and Similar Misconduct

The recipient and any subrecipicnts ("subgrantccs") must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the
Inspector General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent subrecipient,
contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds under this award - (I)
submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil
violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar miMondua.
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Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award
should be reported to the OIG by- (1) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at
https://oig.justice.gov/hotline/grant-complaint (select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail directed
to: U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General, Investigations Division, ATTN:
Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20530; (3) by facsimile
directed to the DOJ OIG Fraud Detection Office (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at (202) 616-9881
(fax).

Additional information is available from the IX)J OIG website at ht{fj>s://6ifl-.ii:L';tice:gov/ho^

26. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subiecipient ("subgr^tcc") under this award, or entity that receives a
procurement contract or subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee
or contractor to sigh an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or
otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of
waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to
contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified
information), Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compaitmented information), or any other
form issued by a federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure of classified
information:

1. In accepting this award, the subrecipient-

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or
statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently
restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or
contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport
to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will
immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written
notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption
of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. If the subrccipient docs or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants"),
procurement contracts, or both—

a. it represents that—
I

(I) it has determined that no other entity that the subrccipient's application proposes may^ociwilr.
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receive award fiinds (whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement contract, or
subcontract under a procurement contract) cither requires or has required internal
confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently
prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this
representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it teams or is notified that any subrccipicnt, contractor, or subcontractor entity
that receives funds tmder this award is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to
execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or
restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any
further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification
to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption oO such
obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

27. Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)
I

The recipient (and any subrccipicnt at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all
applicable provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under
specified circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the employee's
disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a gross waste of
federal funds, ah abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger
to public hcalth'or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The subrccipicnt also must inform its employees, in writing (and In the predominant native
language of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award,
the subrccipicnt is to contact the NHDOJ or (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

28. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1. 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrccipicnts
("subgrantecs") to adopt and enforce policies banning employees from text messaging while
driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this award, and to establish
workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

29. Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated high risk by a federal
graot-makbig agency outside of DOJ.

If the recipient is designated high risk by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ,
currently or at any time during the course of the period of performance under this award, jhc

Initials:

Page 12 of 35 Date: lA



EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant U 15JOVW-24-GG-00513-STOP

subreciplcnt must disclose that fact and certain related Information to OVW by email to
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high risk includes any status under
which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the recipient's past
performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient.

The recipient's disclosure must include the following: (1) the federal awarding agency that
currently designates the recipient-high risk; (2) the date the recipient was designated high risk;
(3) the high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and
email address); and (4) the reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding
agency.

30. Availability of general terms and conditions on OVW website

The subreclpicnt agrees to follow the applicable set of general terms and conditions that are
available at https://www.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions. These do not supersede any specific
conditions in this award document

31. Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements

The subrccipient agrees to comply with all relevant statutory and regulatory requirements, which
may include, among other relevant authorities, the Violence Against Women Act of 1994, P.L.
103-322, the violence Against Women Act of 2000, P.L. 106-386, the Violence Against Women
and Department of Justice Reauthorization Act of 2005, P.L. 109-162, the Violence Against
Women Reauthorization Act of 2013, P.L. 113-4, the Violence Against Women Act
Reauthorization Act of 2022, P.L. 117-103, the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of
1968, 34 U.S.C. lOIOl ct seq., and theOVWs implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 90.

32. Compliance with solicitation requirements

The subrccipient agrees that It must be in compliance with requirements outlined in the
solicitation under which the approved application was submitted, the applicable Solicitation
Companion Guide, and any program-specific frequently asked questions (FAQs) on the OVW
website (https://www.justice.gov/ovw/resources-and-f^s-grantees). The program solicitation,
Companion Guide, and any program specific FAQs are hereby incorporated by reference into
this award.

33. VAWA 2013 nondiscriminatlon condition

The subrccipient acknowledges that 34 U.S.C. § I229l(bX13) prohibits subrecipients of OVW
awards from excluding, denying benefits to, or discriminating against any person on the basis of
actual or perceived race, color, religion, national origin, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation,
or disability in any program or activity funded in whole or in part by OVW. Subrecipients may
provide sex-segregated or sex-specific programming if doing so is necessary to the essential
operations of the program, so long as the subrecipient provides comparable services to those who
cannot be provided with the sex-segregated or scx-speciflc programming.
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The subrecipient agrees that It will (»mply with this provision. The subrccipicnt also agrees to
ensure that any subrccipicnts ("subgrantees") at any tier will comply with this provision.

34. Misdsc of award funds

The subrecipient understands and agrees that misuse of award funds may result in a range of
penalties, including suspension of current and future funds, suspension or debarment from
federal grants, recoupment of monies provided under an award, and civil and/or criminal
penalties.

35. Umitation on use of funds to approved activities

The subrecipient agrees that grant fiinds will be used only for the purposes described in the
subrecipicht's application, unless the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit determines that any ol
these activities arc out of scope or unallowable. The subrccipicnt must not undertake any work or
activities that are not described in the subrecipicnt^s application, award documents, or approved
budg^ and must not use staff, equipment, or other goods or services paid for with grant funds
for such work or activities, without prior written approval by the NHDOJ.

36. Non-supplantation

The subrecipient agrees that grant funds will be used to supplement, not supplant, non-federal
funds that would otherwise be available for the activities under this grant.

37. Confidentiality and information sharing

The subrecipient agrees to comply with the provisions of 34 U.S.C. § l229l(bX2), nondisclosure
of confidential or private information, which includes creating and maintaining documentation of
compliance, such as policies and procedures for release of victim information.

The subrecipient also agrees to comply with the regulations implementing this provision at 28
CFR 90.4(b) and "Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) on the VAWA Confidentiality Provision
(34 U.S.C. § 12291(b)(2))'' on the OVW website at
http$://www;juslicc.gov/ovw/resources-and-faqs-grantees. The subrecipient also agrees to ensure
that all subrccipicnts ("subgrantees") at any tier meet these requirements.

38. Activities that compromise victim safety and recovery or undermine offender
accountability

(

The subrecipient agrees that grant funds will not support activities that compromise victim safety
and recovery or undermine offender accountability, such as: procedures or policies that exclude
victims from receiving safe shelter, advocacy services, counseling, and other assistance based on
their actual or perceived sex, age, immigration status, race, religion, sexual orientation, gender
Identity, mental health condition, physical health condition, criminal record, work In the sex
industry, or the age and/or sex of their children; procedures or policies that compromise the
confidentiality of information and privacy of persons receiving OVW-fundcd services;
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proci^ures or policies that impose requirements on victims in order to receive services (e.g.. seek
an order of protection, receive counseling, participate in couples' counseling or mediation, report
to law enforcement, seek civil or criminal remedies, etc.); procedures or policies that fat) to
ensure service providers conduct safety planning with victims; project design and budgets that
fail to account for the access needs of participants with disabilities and participants who have
limited English proficiency or are Deaf or hard of hearing; or any other activities outlined in the
solicitation or companion guide under which the application was submitted.

I

39. Policy for response to workplace^related incidents of sexual misconduct, domestic violence,
and dating violence

The ifecipient, and any subrecipicnt at any tier, must have a policy, or issue a policy within 270
days of the award date, to address workplace-related incidents of sexual misconduct, domestic
violence, and dating violence involving an employee, volunteer, consultant, or contractor. The
details of this requirement are posted on the OVW web site at
https://www.Justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions (Award Condition: Policy for response to
workplace-related sexual misconduct, domestic violence, and dating violence), and are /
incoporated by reference here.

40. Termination or snspensioD for cause

The Director of OVW or the NHDOJ, upon a finding that there has been substantial failure by
the subrecipicnt to comply with applicable laws, regulations, and/or the terms and conditions of
the award or relevant solicitation, will terminate or suspend until satisfied that there is no longer
such failure, all or part of the award„in accordance with the provisions of 28 C.F.R. Part 18, as
applicable mutatis mutandis, the federal regulation providing uniform rules for termination of
grants and cooperative agreements is 2 CFR 200.340.

41. Performance progress reports and final report submission

The subrecipicnt agrees to provide OVW with specific information regarding subawards
("subgrants") made under this award. The subrecipicnt agrees to submit an annual report that
includes: a) an assessment of whether stated goals and objectives were achieved; b) information
on the effectiveness of activities carried out with grant funds, including the number of persons
served and the number of persons seeking services who could not be served; c) information on
each subaward made; and d) such other information as OVW may prescribe.

I

SubrMipients are required to submit this report after the end of each calendar year but no later
than March 15th each year. Recipients and subrecipients must use the designated forms and/or
systems made available by OVW for performance reporting, which identify the information that
recipients and subrecipients must collect and report as a condition of receiving funding under this
award.
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(

42. Subi^ipient program income

Program in^me, as defined by 2 C.F.R. 200.1, means gross income earned by a non-federal
entity that is directly generated by a supported activity or earned as a result of the federal award
during the period of performance. Without prior approval, program income must be deducted
from, total allowable costs to determine the net allowable costs.

!

In order to add program income to a subaward, subrecipients must seek approval from the
NHCiOJ prior to generating any program income. Any program income added to a subaward
must be used to support activities that were approved in the budget and follow the conditions of
the siibaward agreement. Any program income approved by the NHDOJ Grants Management
Unit must be reported by the subrecipient to the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit so that it is
reported on the quarterly Federal Financial Report (SF-425) in accordance with the addition
alternative. If the program income amount changes (increases or decreases) during the project
period, the subrecipient must provide approval by the end of the project period.

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in audit findings for both the recipient and
the subrecipient.

I

43. Submipient product Dionltdriug
I  .

The subrecipient agrees to be monitored to ensure that materials and products (written, visual, or
sound) developed with OVW formula grant program funding fall within the scope of the grant
program and do not compromise victim safety.

44. PublicatioDS disclaimer for STOP Formula subrecipients
I

The subrecipient agrees that all materials and publications (written, web-based, audio-visual, or
any other format) resulting from subaward activities shall contain the following statement:

'This project was supported by Subgrant No. awarded by the state administering
office for the Office on Violence Against Women, U.S. Department of Justice's STOP Formula
Grant Program. The opinions, findings, conclusions, and recommendations expressed in this
publicaiion/program/exhibition are those ofthe Quthor(s) and do not necessarily reflect the
views of the state or the U.S Department of Justice."

45. Copyrighted works

Purs^nt to 2 C.F.R. 200.315(b), the recipient may copyright any work that is subject to
copyright and was developed, or for which ownership was acquired, under this award. OVW
reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise
use the work, in whole or in part (including in the creation of derivative works), for federal
purposes, and to authorize others to do so.

i  >

OVW also reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or
othcnvisc use, in whole or in part (including in the creation of derivative works), any worj
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developed by a subrecipient ("subgrantee") of this award, for federal purposes, and to authorize
others to do so.

In addition, the recipient (or subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor of this award at any tier)
must obtain advance written approval from the OVW program manager assigned to this award,
and must cornply with all conditions specified by the program manager in connection with that
approval, before: 1) using award funds to purchase ownership of, or a license to use, a
copyrighted work; or 2) incorporating any copyrighted work, or portion thereof, into a new work
developed under this award.

It is the responsibility of the recipient (and of each subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor as
applicable) to ensure that this condition is included in any subaward, contract, or subcontract
under this award.

46. Coosultant compeosation rates

The subrecipient acknowledges that consultants paid with award funds generally may not be paid
at a rate in excess of $81.25 per hour, not to exceed $650 per day. To exceed this specified
maximum rate, recipients must submit to OVW a detailed justification and have such
justification approved by OVW, prior to obligation or expenditure of such funds.

Issuance of diis award or approval of the award budget alone does not indicate approval of any
consultant rate in excess of $81.25 per hour, not to exceed $650 per day. Although prior approval
is not required for consultant rates below this specified maximum rate, subrccipients are required
to maintain documentation to support all daily or hourly consultant rates.

47. Ongoing compliance with statntory certiflcfltions

The subrecipient agrees that compliance with the statutory certification requirements is an
ongoing responsibility during the award period and that, at a minimum, a hold may be placed on
the subrccipicht's funds for nohcompliance with any of the requirements of 34 U.S.C. § 10449
(regarding rape exam payments), 34 U.S.C. § 10449(c) (regarding judicial notification), 34
U.S.C. § 10450 (regarding certain fees and costs), and 34 U.S.C. § 10451 (regarding
polygraphing of sexual assault victims), and 34 U.S.C. 10454 (regarding victim-center
prosecution), and 34 U.S.C. 10446(dK6)(rcgarding award conditions).

Non-compliance with any of the foregoing may also result in termination or suspension of the
grant or other remedial me^ures, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

48. Requirements for subreclpients providing legal assistance

The subrecipient agrees that the legal assistance eligibility requirements, as set forth below, are a
continuing obligation on the part of the subrecipient. The legal assistance eligibility requirements
are:

(I) any person providing legal assistance through a program funded under this grant prw
/  ̂
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant# 15JOVW-24-GG-00513-STOP

(A) has demonstrated expertise in providing legal assistance to victims of domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking in the targeted population; or

(B) (i) is partnered with an entity or person that has demonstrated expertise described in
subparagraph (A); and (ii) has completed or will complete training in connection with
domestic violence, dating violence, stalking, or sexual assault and related legal issues,
including training on evidence-based risk factors for domestic and dating violence homicide;

(2) any training program conducted in satisfaction of the requirement of paragraph (I) has been
or will be developed with input from and in collaboration with a state, local, territorial, or tribal
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking victim
service provider or coalition, as well as appropriate state, local, territorial, and tribal law
enforcement officials;

(3) any penon or organization providing legal assistance through this grant program has
informed and will continue to inform state, local, territorial, or tribal domestic violence, dating
violence, stalking, or sexual assault programs and coalitions, as well as appropriate state and
local law enforcement officials of their work; and

(4) the recipient's organizational policies do not require mediation or counseling involving
offenders and victims physically together, in cases where sexual assault, dating violence,
domestic violence, or child sexual abuse is an issue. The recipient also agrees to ensure that any
subrecipicnt ("subgrantee") at any tier will comply with this condition.

50. Due to significant limitations and regulatory differences set forth by Violence Against Women
Act Reauthorization Act of2022, P.L. 117-103, fxinding received from federal fiscal year 2023
STOP Violence Against Women Act formula grant, and federal fiscal years thereafter, must not
be commingled with STOP Violence Against Women Act funding from the 2022 federal fiscal
funding or preceding federal fiscal years.

Initials:
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-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

IV The Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire Department of Justice
(DOJ) as the State Agency for expenses incurred and services provided for victims of

sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit C. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (I S) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later

than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January I, the first quarterly
report is due on April 15^ or 15 days after the close of thefirst quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both

state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this

office or any other state or federal audit ̂ thority. Grant project supporting

documentation shall be maintained for at least seven (7) years after the close of the
Federal Gi^t.

4. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt
shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to;

NH Department of Justice
Grants Management Unit

I Granite Place, South

Concord, NH 03301

(603) 271-809lor iravis.n.tecboom@doj.nh.gov

Initials^
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EXHIBIT (;

- PAYMENT TERMS-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure

reports as described in EXHIBIT B.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's

approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not

exceed the price limitation set forth in form G-1 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $40,000 of the

total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval or 1/1/2025,

whichever is later, to 12/31/2025, with approved expenditure reports. This shall

be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

3b. With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the Subrecipient may

apply for an extension of the grant period for up to the end of the federal, grant

end date, not after. No extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ in
writing.

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs incurred

under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval, or after 12/31 /2025, unless

a grant extension is approved in writing by DOJ.
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EXHIBIT D

-EEOP REPORTING, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES-

-  Q - Iresi^nsible offtciaf]. certify that 603 Legal
Aid [Subrecipient] has completed the EEO reporting iboi;certification within the last two years
at: https:7/dib.E6v/abdut/dcr/fe ccbb^htm on M \ [date]

It is understood that subrecipients which are exempt from filing the EEOP Utilization Report
including non-profits and subrecipients with less than 50 employees must file a declaration
claiming exemption at least once every two years with the Office for Justice Programs; Office of
Civil Rights at the above web address.

EEGP'TniipinE-RHiuircmcnts^fbrSo

.  - \pfficial that completed training] has completed

the EEOP training at hnPs://Qip.fiov/ab'out/bcr/ocr-trainin£-videos/video-ocrHrai'ninE.htm on:

3 I I 7?^ [date]. The EEOP training must be completed at least once every
two years.

DOJDIscHnilhatibn 42omDialht Process:

If individuals believe they may have been discriminated against by the NH Department of Justice
or by an organization that receives federal funding from the NH Department of Justice based on
their race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientatipn or gender
identity should print and complete a complaint form that can be found at: Civil Riahts.i Grants
\laha^fheht bnit I NH Pebartmchr of Justice'

Subrecibicnt Gbiiiplaint Process

I further certify that 603 Legal Aid [Subrecipient] will comply with applicable federal civil rights
laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the delivery of services and has a policy
or written procedure in place for accepting discrimination-based complaints from employees and
program beneficiaries and that policy/procedure must be made publicly available to program
beneficiaries or prospective beneficiaries.
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EXHIBIT P

Ccftifi^Standafd Assiira^^

On behalf of the Subrecipient, and in support of this application for a grant or cooperative
agreement, I certify under penalty of perjury to the U.S. Department of Justice ("Department"),
that all of the following are true and correct:

(1) I have the authority to make the following representations on behalf of myself and the
Subrecipient I understand that these representations will be relied upon as material in any
Department decision to make an award to the Subrecipient based on its application.

(2) I certify that the Subrecipient has the legal authority to apply for the federal assistance sought
by the application, and that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability (including
funds sufficient to pay any required non-federal share of project costs) to plan, manage', and
complete the project described in the application properly.

(3) I assure that, throughout the period of performance for the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application—

a. the Subrecipient will comply with ail award requirements and all federal statutes and
regulations applicable to the award;
b. the Subrecipient will require all subrccipients to comply with all applicable award
requirements and all applicable federal statutes and regulations; and
c. the Subrecipient will maintain safeguards to address and prevent any organizational
conflict of interest, and also to prohibit employees from using their positions in any
manner that poses, or appears to pose, a personal or financial conflict of interest.

(4) The Subrecipient understands that the federal statutes and regulations applicable to the award
(if any) made by the Department based on the application specifically include statutes and
regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination, and, in addition—

a. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to civil rights will
include section 601 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); section 901 of the Education
Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681); and section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act
of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §6102);
b. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to
nondiscrimination may include section 809(c) of Title I of the Omnibus Crime Control
and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); section 1407(e) of the Victims of
Crime Act of 1984 (34 U.S.C. § 20110(e)); section 299A(b) of the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § 11182(b)); and that the grant condition
set out at section 40002(b)(13)of the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. §
I2291(b)(13)), which will apply to all awards made by the Office on Violence Against
Women, also may apply to an award made otherwise;
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c. the Subrecipient understands that it must require any pass-through subrccipient to
comply with all such applicable statutes (and associated regulations); and
d. on behalf of the Subrccipient, I make the specific assurances set out in 28 C.F.R. §§
42.105 ̂ d 42,204.

(5) The Subrccipient also understands that (in addition to any applicable program-specifjc
regulations and to applicable federal regulations that pertain to civil rights and
nondiscrimination) the federal regulations applicable to the award (if any) made by the
Department based on die application may include, but are not limited to, 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (the
DOJ "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") and 28 C.F.R. Parts 22 (confidentiality - research and
statistical information), 23 (criminal intelligence systems), 38 (regarding faith-based or religious
organizations participating in federal financial assistance programs), and 46 (human subjects
protection).

(6) I assure that the Subreciplent will assist the Department as necessary (and will require
subreciplents and contractors to assist as necessary) with the Department's compliance with
section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (54 U.S.C. § 306108), the
Archcologlcal and Historical Preservation Act of 1974 (54 U.S.C. §§ 312501-312508), and the
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969(42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4335), and 28 C.F.R. Parts 61
(NEPA) and 63 (floodplains and wetlands).

(7) I assure that the Subrccipient will give the Department and the Government Accountability
Office, through aiiy authorized representative, access to, and opportunity to examine, all paper or
electronic records related to the award (if any) made by the Department based on the application.

(8) If this application is for an award from the National Institute of Justice or the Bureau of
Justice Statistics pursuant to which award funds may be made available (whether by the award
directly or by any subaward at any tier) to an institution of higher education (as defined at 34
U.S.C. § 1025l(a)(I7)), I assure that, if any award funds actually are made available to such an
institution, the Subrecipicnl will require that, throughout the period of performance—

a. each such institution comply with any requirements that are imposed on it by the First
Amendment to the Constitution of the United States; and
b. subject to par. a, each such institution comply with its own representations, if any,
concerning academic freedom, freedom of inquiry and debate, research independence,
and research integrity, at the institution, that arc included in promotional materials, in
official statements, in formal policies, in applications for grants (including this award
application), for accreditation, or for licensing, or In submissions relating to such grants,
accreditation, or licensing, or that otherwise arc made or disseminated to students, to
faculty, or to the general public.

(9) I assure that, if the Subrccipient is a governmental entity, with respect to the award (if any)
made by the Department based on the application—
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a. it will comply with the rcquipcments of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C §§ 4601-4655), which govern the treatment
of persons displaced as a result of federal and federally-assisted programs; and
b. it will comply with requirements of 5 U.S.C. §§ 1501-1508 and 7324-7328, which
limit certain political activities of State or local government employees whose principal
employment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by federal
assistance.

(10) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives an award fhim the Office of Community
Oriented Policing Services (COPS Office), I assure that as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10382(cXI I),
it will, to the extent practic^le and consistent with applicable law-including, but not limited to,
the Indian Sclf-Dctcrmination and Education Assistance Act-seek, recruit, and hire qualified
members of racial and ethnic minority groups and qualified women in order to further effective
law enforcement by increasing their ranks within the sworn positions, as provided under 34
U.S.C.§ I0382(c)(ll).

(11) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives a DOJ award under the STOP School Violence
Act program, I assure as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10552(a)(3), that it will maintain and report
such data, records, and information (programmatic and financial) as DOJ may reasonably
require.

I acknowledge that a materially false, fictitious, or iraudulent statement (or concealment or
omission of a material fact) in this certification, or in the application that it supports, may be the
subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34
U.S.C. §§ 10271-10273), and also may subject me and the Subrecipient to civil penalties and
administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730
and 3801-3812); I also acknowledge that the Department's awards, including certifications
provided in connection with such awards, are subject to review by the Department, including by
its Office of the Inspector General.

NamCrOf Authorized Si^r Title of Authorized Signer

-  ■ -

Si Date
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-NON-SUPPLANTING CERTIFICATION -

Suppiantinp'defined:
Federal funds must be used to supplemenl existing funds for program activities and must not
replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the Subrecipient or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency slating that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II,
Chapter 3VHiiD7/w'^.QiDlu"sdbi.eovyfiriariciarguide7part2/^^^^

Supplahtineari^

A recipient or siibrccipient may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the
federal money, would be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain Jobs, it
must be able to substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be,
but is not limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a

county or municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced
when making determinations about employment. ITic documentation must describe the
terminated positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or
local funds.

603 Legal Aid (Subrecipient) certifies that any funds awarded through grant number

202SVAW18 shall be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and will not

replace (supplant) nonfederal funds that have been appropriated for the purposes and goals of the

grant.

603 Legal Aid (Subrecipient) understands that supplanting violations may result in a range of

penalties, including but not limited to suspension of future funds under this program, suspension

or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies provided under this grant, and civil

and/or criminal penalties.

Printed NamCid^SUtle of Authorized

Signature: T A., Date
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EXHIBIT r

I
NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

fir

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND
OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

REQUIREMENTS

Subreciplents should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which
they are requircd'to attest. Subrccipients should also review the instructions for certification
included in the regulations before completing this form. The certifications shall be treated as a
material representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U.S. Department of
Justice ("Cicpartment") determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative
agreement.

1. LOBBYING

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Subrccipient certifies
aiid assures (to the extent applicable) the following:
(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Subrccipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Con^ss in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b) If the Subrccipient's request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Subrecipient shall complete and submit Standard
Form - LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency's) instructions; and

(c) The Subrecipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurement contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
recipients of such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

2. DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION. AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS
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A. Pursuant to Department regulations on nonprocurcment debarmcnt and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Subrccipieni certifies,
with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier "covered transaction," as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867.20(a), that neither it nor any of its principals—
(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordcbarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, ancmpting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or
transaction;

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction ofJustice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its
(or its principals') present responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged'by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or Ideal) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default

B. Where the Subrecipicnt is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it
shall attach an explanation to this application. Where the Subrecipicnt or any of its principals •
was convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, the Subrecipicnt also must disclose such felony criminal
conviction in writing to the Department (for OJP Subrccipicnts, to OJP at
OJpcompliancereporting@usdoJ.gov; forOVW Subreclpients, toOVW at
OVW.GFMD@usdoJ.gov; or for COPS Subrecipients, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoJ.gov),
unless such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A. If the Subrecipicnt is a corporation, it certifies either that (I) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which ail Judicial and administrative

remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner
pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or
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(2) the corporation has provided written notice of such an unpaid tax liability (or liabilities) to
the Department (for OJP

Subrecipicnts, to OJP at Ojpcomplianccrcporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Subrecipients, to OVW
at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Subrecipicnts, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

)

B. Where the Subrcciplent is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it
shall attach an cT^lanation to this application.

4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:
A. T^c Subrccipient certifies and assures that it-will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free
workplace by—

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an on-going drug-fiw awareness program to, inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Subrecipicnt's policy of maintaining a drug-fiec workplace;

(3) Any available.drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee's conviction for a violation of a criminal drug'
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;
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(e) Notifying the DcpartmCTt, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

For COP5 award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs,
ATTN: Control Desk, 810 7th Street, RW., Washington, D.C. 20531.

Notice shall include the identification numberfs) of each affected award;
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice lindcr
subparagraph (dX2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisftctorily in.a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and ^

(g)Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (bX (c), (d), (c), and (0-

If you arc unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

Naj3»e:p.fA uth6rized; Sifinon Title of Authorized Signor

Signature Date

Tiwncan?^

Initials;

Page 29 of 35 Date:"~\ ] H |



KXHTBirr.

Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act
(FFATA) Compliance

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires
Subrccipients of individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or
after October I. 2010, to report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-
tier sub-grants of $30,000 or more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant
modifications result in a total award equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFAl A
reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation
Information), DOJ must report the following information for any grant award subject to the
FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of poformance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (SAM #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government,
and those revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC;

Subrccipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in
which the award or award amendment is made.

The Subrccipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with the
provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282
and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive
Compensation Information), and further agrees to have one of the Subrecipient's
reprcsentativc(s), as identified in Sections 1.11 of the Grant Agreement execute the following
Certification:

The below named Subrecipient agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to
DOJ and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability
and Transparency Act.
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Certification

Name of Authorized Si^or Title of Authorized Signor

Si ture Date

As the Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement, I certify that the
responses to the below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The Unique Entity ID (SAM) number for your entity is: XNK.D05AC4HW6

2. In your business or organization *s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal
contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2)
$25,000,000 or more In annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

NO v_YES

If the answer to above Is NO, stop
here

If the answer to if! above is YES, please answer the
following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986? ^ y

NO

If the answer to above is YES, stop

If the answer to if3 above is NO, please answer the
following:

5. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in
your business or organization are as follows:

Iriitial
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Certification

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:,

Name:

Amount:.

Amount:.

Amount.

Amount^;

Amount:
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U.S. DepartmeQt of Justice
Office on yfaience Against fVomen

Acknowledgement of Notice of Statutory Requirement to Comply with the
Confidentiality and Privacy Provisions of the Violence Against Women Act, as

Amended

Under section 40002(b)(2) of the Violence Against Women Act, as amended (34 U.S.C.
12291(b)(2)), grantees and subgrahtees with funding from the OfTicc on Violence Against.
Women (OVW) arc required to meet the following terms with regard to nondisclosure of
confidential or private information and to document their compliance. By signature on this form,
applicants for grants from OVW are acknowledging that that they have notice that. If awarded
funds, they will be required to comply with this provision, and will mandate that subgrantees. if
any, comply with this provision, and will create and maintain documentation of compliance, such
as policies and procedures for release of victim information, and will mandate that subgrantees,
if any, will do so as well.

(A) In general
In order to ensure the safety of adult, youth, and child victims of domestic violence, dating
violence, sexual,assault, or stalking, and their families, grantees and subgrantees under this
subchaptcr shall protect the confidentiality and privacy of persons receiving services.

(B) Nondisclosure
Subject to subparagraphs (C) and (D), grantees and subgrantees shall not—
(i) disclose, reveal,\or release any personally identifying information or individual information
collected in connection with services requested, utilized, or denied through grantees' and
subgrantees* programs, regardless of whether the information has been encoded, encrypted,
hashed, or otherwise protected; or
(ii) disclosci reveal, or release individual client information without the informed, written,
reasonably timc-liniitcd consent of the person (or in the case of an unemancipatcd minor, the
minor and the parent or guardian or in the case of legal Incapacity, a court-appointed guardian)
about whom information is sought, whether for this program or any other Federal, State, tribal,
or territorial grant program, except that consent for release may not be given by the abuser of the
m inor, incapacitated person, or the abuser of the other parent of the m inor.

Initials:
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If a minor or a person with.a legally appointed guardian is permitted by law to receive services
without the parent's or guardian's consent, the minor or person with a guardian may release
information without additional consent.

(C) Release
If release of information described in subparagfaph (B) is compelled by statutory or court
mandate—

(i) grantees and subgrantecs shall make reasonable attempts to provide notice to victims affected
by the disclosure of information; and
(ii) grantees and subgrantees shall take steps necessary to protect the privacy and safety of the
persons affected by the release of the Information.

(D) InforraatioD sharing
(i) Grantees and subgrantees may share—
(I) nonpersonally identifying data in the aggregate regarding services,to their clients and
nonpersonally identifying demographic information in order to comply with Federal, State,
tribal, or territorial rciwrting, evaluation, or data collection requirements;
(II) court-generated information and law enforcement-generated information contained in secure,
governmental registries for protection order enforcement purposes; and
(III) law enforcement-generated and prosecution-generated information necessary for law
enforcement and prosecution purposes.
(ii) In no circumstances may—
(I) an adult, youth, or child victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking be required to provide a consent to release his or her personally identifying information
as a condition of eligibility for the services provided by the grantee or subgrantee;
(II) any personally identifying information be shared in order to comply with Federal, tribal, or
State reporting, evaluation, or data collection requirtments, whether for this program or any
other Federal, tribal, or State grant program.

(E) Statutorily mandated reports of abuse or neglect
Nothing In this section prohibits a grantee or subgrantee from reporting suspected abuse or
neglect, as those terms are defuied and specifically mandated by the State or tribe involved.

(F) Oversight
Nothing in this paragraph shall prevent the Attorney General from disclosing grant activities
authorized in this Act to the chairman and ranking members of the Committee on the Judiciary of
the House of Representatives and the Committee on the Judiciary of the Senate exercising
Congressional oversight authority. All disclosures shall protect confidentiality and omit
personally identifying information, including location information about individuals.

(G) Confidentiality assessment and assurances
Grantees and subgrantees must document their compliance with the confidentiality and privacy
provisions required under this section.

(H) Death of the party whose privacy had been protected
In the event of the death of any victim whose confidentiality and privacy is required to be
protected under this subsection, grantees and subgrantees may share personally identilying

Initials:.
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information or individual information that is collected about deceased victims being sought for
a fatality review to the extent permitted by their jurisdiction's law and only if the following
conditions are met:

(!) The underlying objectives of the fatality review are to prevent future deaths, enhance victim
safety, and incre^ offender accountability.

(ii) The fatality review includes policies and protocols to protect identifying information,
including identifying information about the victim's children, from further release outside the
fatality review team.

(lil) The grantee or subgrantee makes a reasonable effort to get a release from the victim's
personal representative (if one has been appointed) and from any surviving minor children or
the guardian of such children (but not if the guardian is the abuser of the deceased parent), if
the children are not capable of knowingly consenting.

(iv) The information released is limited to that which is necessary for the purposes of the
fatality review.

As the duly authorized rqnesehtalivc of the applicant, I hereby edcnowled^'that'the appHcont has received notice
that if awarded funding they will comply whh the above statutory requirements. This a^owledgement shall be
treated as a material representation of fact upon which the Department ofJustice will rely if it determines to
award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement

CSxAvviKNe/
Typed Name of Authorized Representative Title

Telephone Number. 4V^\

■\t .Hi'

A  1

•s 'Z

.Signal^ of Authorized Representative Date Signed

Agency Name 7^

!niliais:i:
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIHCATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretaiy of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that 603 LEGAL AID is a New

Hampshire Noiqtrofit Coiporation registered to trsnsact business in New Hampshire on November 01,1995.1 hulfaer certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofBce have been received and is in good standing as fctr as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 239384

Certfficate Number 0006671610

Ik

o

A
N

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 18th day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



Certificate of Authority

1, Melinda S. Gehris, hereby certify that I am duly elected Chair of 603 Legal Aid. I

hereby certify that the following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the
Board of Directors; duly called and held on November 16, 2023, at which a quorum of
Directors participated.

Voted: that Ariel Clemmer, Executive Director, effective November 20,2023, shall be

duly authorized to enter into contracts or agreements on behalf of 603 Legal Aid with the
State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is and has
been authorized to execute any documents which may In her judgment be desirable or

necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and this authority
remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority.

I further certify that it Is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this

certificate as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the position

indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that

there are any limits on the authority of the named individual to bind the corporation in

contracts with the State of New Hampshire, alt such limitations are expressly stated

herein.

Date: Attest

'Melinda S. OeKris. Boai^ Chair

93 Nenh Statt Strttt, SuUt 200. Concord. NH 03301
Phone: 603-224-33331 Fax: 603-224-6067



Aco^hr CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/OD/VYYV)

01/12/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OP INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON JhE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE

POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S).
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(le8) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,

subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificato does not
confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USI INSURANCE SERVICES LLC/PHS

04041093

The Hartford Business Service Center

3600 Wiseman Blvd

San Antonio, TX 78251

COKTACT

NAMF-

PHONE (866) 467-8730 fax
(A/C. No. Ext): tA/C.No):

E-MAIL

ADDRESS;

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICf

INSURED

603 Legal Aid

93 N STATE ST STE 200

CONCORD NH 03301-4334

INSURER A Hartford Casualty Insurance Company 29424

INSURER a Twin City Fire lnsurar>ce Company 29459

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED.NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE

TERMS. EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

LTR
TYP6 OF INSURANCE

ADDL

INSR

SUBR

WVD
POLICY NUMBER '

POLICY EFF

/MMmDWVYYI

POLICY EXP

IMMmorVYVYI
UMITS

A

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIASIL/TY

X 04 SBA EQ5895 02/21/2024 02/21/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE $2,000,000

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

neral Liability

DAMAGE TO RENTED $500,000

X Ge MED EXP (Any ona pareon) $10,000

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY $2,000,000

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $4,000,000

OTHER;

PRODUCTS • COMPXDP AGG $4,000,000

A

AUTOMOBILE LiABiLrrr

04 SBA EQ5895 02/21/2024 02/21/2025

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $2,000,000

X

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Par parson)

ALL OWNED

AUTOS

HIRED

AUTOS

SCHEDULED

AUTOS

NON-OWNED

AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Par accidanl)

X
PROPERTY DAMAGE

(Peraccidartt)

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-

MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABIMTY

N/A 04 WEC NJ8891 02/21/2024 02/21/2025

X
PER

STATUTE

OTH-

FR

ANY

PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? '

Y/N E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $500,000

E.L DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE $500,000

(Mandatixy In NH)
If yas. dascflbe undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS baiow

E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMU $1,000,000

OesaHPTtON of opera TKHS / UOCATtONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddraenN Renarto Sci>*dui«. may ba attachad H mora spaca ta raquirad)

Those usual to the Insured's Operations. Certificate holder is an additional insured per the Business Liability Coverage Form SS0008 attached to this
policy.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Justice

1 GRANITE PLACE, SOUTH

CONCORO NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED

BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE .WILL BE DELIVERED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

e 198S-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

603 Legal Aid

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements ^

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 603 Legal Aid (a nonprofit
organization), w/hich comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2023, and
the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of 603 Legal Aid as of December 31, 2023, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the 603 Legal
Aid and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about 603 Legal
Aid's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are available to be issued.



Auditors' Responslbtlltles for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whettier the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted inaccordance
with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,' or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design arid perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the.financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 603 Legal Aid's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about 603 Legal Aid's ability to continue
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.



Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited 603 Legal Aid's December 31. 2022 financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements In our report dated
July 27, 2023. In our opinion, the sumrnarized comparative Information presented herein as of
and for the year ended December 31. 2022, is consistent, in all material respects, with the
audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The additional schedule on page 19 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and
is not a required part of the financial statements. Additionally, the accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Pn'nciples and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June
14, 2024, on our consideration of 603 Legal Aid's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 603 Legal Aid's internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering 603 Legal Aid's internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Dover, New Hampshire
June 14. 2024



603 LEGAL AID

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31. 2023 AND 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $

Contribution receivable

Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses

2023

675,362

30,543

570,764
45.122

$

2022

382,001

12,057

408,942

23,901

Total current assets 1,321,791 826,901

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 4,677 6,328

OTHER ASSETS

Right of use asset

Security deposits
90,490

8,833

186,861
8,833

Total other assets V, 99,323. 195,694

Total assets $ 1.425.791 $ 1.028.922

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lease liability, current portion $
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Advances from grantors

86,996

20,963

89,572

328,332

$. 96,323

11,526

69,041
75,000

Total current liabilities 525,863 251,890

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Lease liability, net of current portion 3,669 90,664

Total liabilities 529,532 342,554

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions 874,674

/

341,371

With donor restrictions

Legal Services Corporation, property
Non-Legal Services Corporation

6,907
14,678

6,925
338,073

Total with donor restrictions

Total net assets

21,585 344,998

896,259 686,369

Total liabilities and net assets $ 1.425.791 S 1.028.923

See Notes to Financial Statements
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a03 LgGAL AID

STATEMENT OF ACTIVTTtES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
WTTH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR DECEMBER 31. 2022

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

LSC Basic FleM grant
lOLTA grant

Other grants

Interest irvcome

In-Wnd revenue

Contributions

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenues and othtf support

OPERATING EXPENSES

Program services

General arwl adminlstrativa

Total operating expenses

Increase (decrease) In net assets from operations

nonope'rating revenue
Miscellaneous Income

Total t)onoperating revenue

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

359.250

101,553

162.987

1.629.181

2.342,971

1.623.261

193.623

1.618.884

526.087

7.216

7.216

533,303

341.371

LSC

866.295

1.945

(666.258)

(18)

J18)

(18)

6.925

With Donor

Restrictions

Non-LSC

437.528

(760.923)

(323.395)

(323.395)

(323,395)

338.073

Total With Donor

Restrictions

$  866,295

437.528

1.945

(1.629.181)

(323.413)

(323.413)

874.674 6.907 14.678

(323,413)

344.998

21.565

2023

Total

686.295
359.250

437.528

1.945

191.553

162,987

2.019.558

1,623,261
193.623

1.816.684

202.674

xm

7.216

209.890

686.369

2022

Summarized

Total

$  980.663

210,000

562.233

645

338.041

153,061

2.244.643

2.044.647
251.794

2.296.641

(51.998)

4.600

4.600

(47.396)

733.767

896.259 686.369

See Notes to Financial Statements
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M3 LgGAL AID

STATEMEm* OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARLZED COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR DECEMBER 31. 2022

Personnel costs:

Salaries

Payroll taxes

Employee benefits

Total personnel expenses

Otber expenses:

Space ar>d occupancy
Office supplies aixl expenses
Communications

Library maintenance

Training and meetings

Insurance

Dues and fees

Travel

Contract services

MisceSanecus

Depreciation

In-Kind services

LSC Basic

Field Grant

379,435

39,029

69,044

467.508

49,470

6,253

20,485

217

1,434

2,837
1,277

1,393
64,585

1,658

1,651

LSC Private

Attorney

Involvement

44.056

3,681
6.115

53.852

4.336

294

226

5

103

252

5

46

4,597

140

LSC TIG Grant

Multicultural

Grant

46,406

3,624

6.319

56,349

4,491

508

228

37

280

257

16

1,137

5,791

1.092

500

Library

3,941

NH Bar

Foundation

lOLTA

25,893

2,055
3,669

31.617

2,666

270

150

8

301

171

257

726

9,708

549

NH

Department of

J»»tice

136,677

10,135
18,455

165,267

13,157

■;2,878
682

104

828

760

778

1,165
15,656

603

50,264

NHLASub-
Grant vawa

S  24,200
1,855
3,372

29.427

2.762
184
137

31
78

160

19

60

3,538
316,

79,973

Total other expenses 151,260 10,004 14,337 3,941 15,006 86.675 87,258

Subtotal 638,766 63,856 . 70,686 3,941 46,623 251,942 - 116,685

ASocated indirect administrative expenses 165,634 . . 15.366 8.622 33.539 1 6,134

Total functional expenses 2023 s_ 804 40? 1 63 856 88 05? S 3941 i 55?45 s 785 481 S S.

Total functional expenses 2022 4_ 87? 493 i 110 368 1 91.792 i i 5 356 i 149 546 s 166 018 1  1.57 081 i 192.M1

See Notes to Financial Statements

«



603 LEGAL AID

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR DECEMBER 31. 2022

Bank Of

America Other Legal NH Bar 2022

Foreclosure LowMncome Services artd Foundation - Program- General and Summarized

VOCA Grant Tax Clinic Call Center Website Grant Services Administrative Total ToUl

Pereonnel costs; -

Salaries S % 1,390 5 58,360 $  1.307 S  2.959 i 720,683 S 300,691 $  1.021,374 S  1,257,903
Payroll taxes

- 105 5,034 102 300 65.920 23,238 89,158 105,632
Emolovee benefits • 189 9,009 177 437 116.786 42.728 159.514 194.910

-Total personnel expenses 1.884 72.403 1,586 3.696 903.389 366.657 1.270.046 1.558.445

Otner expenses:

Space and occupancy
- 152 6,205 129 265 83,833 27,096 110,929 103,283

Office supplies and expenses - 13 1,437 14 28 11,679 3,480 15,159 20,270
Communications . B 326 7 2,489 24.738 1,417 26,155 24,449
Lit)rsry maintenance - 1 41 1 2 4,388 558 4,946 9,014
Tratnir>g and meetirtgs • 4 1,959 3 11 5,001 645 5,646 13,383
Insurance - 9 417 8 14 4,885 1,551 6,436 7,867
Dues and fees • 1 47 1 . 2,401 782 3,183 7,444
Travel - 2 462 2 9 5,022 319 5,341 3,008
Contract serwces - 26,536 7,059 149 185 137,804 32.566 170,370 204,704
Miscellaneous . 7 286 3 11 4.665 804 5,469 4,580
Depreciation . . - - . 1,651 . 1,651 2,153

In-i0r>d services • - 56.721 . . 187,458 4.095 191,553 338,041

Total other expenses 26.733 74.980 317 3.014 473.525 73.313 546.838 738.196

Subtotal • 28;417 147,383 1.903 6,710 1,376,914 439,970 1,816,884 2,296,641

Alocfttftd InnirRrt ndminislmthm Axprtnsm _ 459 • 15.152 433 1.008 246.347 (246,3471 .

Total ftinctinnal avpensM 2023 | 3 2ft 876 162 535 S  2336 5  7718 1 1 823 261 i 193 823 S  1 816 884

Total functional expenses 2022 i SflTflS S 17611 i 208417 S  113 875 S  5 951 { 2 044 847 1 251 794 8  2 296 841

Sm NotM to Financial Statamants
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603 LEGAL AID

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023 AND 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to net

cash from operating activities;

Depreciation

Interest payments on financing lease
Decrease (increase) in current assets:

Contribution receivable

Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses
Security deposits

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Advances from grantors

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

In-kind donations received

In-kind expenses

2023 2022

$ 209,890 $ (47,398)

1,651 2,153

49 126

(18,486) (12,057)
(161,822) (105,993)

(21,221) (6,201)
- 400

9,437 (25,978)

20,531, 67,408

253,332 69,000

293,361 (58,540)

293,361 (58,540)

382,001 440,541

s 675.362 $ 382.001

$ 191.553 5 338.041

$ (191.553) 5 f338.0411

See Notes to Financial Statements
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603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023 AND 2022

N0TE1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

603 Legal Aid, formally Legal Advice and Referral Center, (the Organization)
was organized as a nonprofit organization under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Organization is a non-profit corporation organized for the
purpose of providing civil legal assistance to persons financially unable to afford
legal assistance in the State of New Hampshire.

The accounting policies of the Organization conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to nonprofit
organizations and the Accounting Guide for LSC Recipients, except as indicated
hereafter. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Merger

During May 2021, a merger agreement was executed between New Hampshire
Pro Bono Referral System, a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation, and Legal
Advice and Referral Center, the surviving nonprofit corporation. Consideration
paid and received as a result of this merger was commensurate with the cash
settlement value of outstanding receivables and payables of the New Hampshire
Pro Bono Referral System as of the date of the merger, approximately $23,331
and $9,307 respectively. As a result, no gain or loss on the merger, or goodwill
or other intangible asset, was recognized. Concurrent to the merger the name of
the merged corporation was amended to "603 Legal Aid".

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Basis of Presentation

^  Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) for financial statements of not-for-profit
organizations. Under the ASC, the Organization is required to report information
regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net asset
classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Includes net assets that are not

subject to donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These
net assets may be used at the discretion of management and the Board
of Directors.



603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023 AND 2022

Net assets with donor restrictions: Includes net assets subject to donor or
certain grantor imposed restrictions. Some^donor-imposed restrictions are
temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time
or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions
are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates those resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a
restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the
stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been
fulfilled, or both.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions. When these restrictions expire, net assets are
reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without

donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022 the Organization had net assets with donor
restrictions of $21,585 and $344,998, respectively (See Note 6).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recoqnitloh

The Organization recognizes grant and contract revenues from Legal Services
Corporation (ISO) as conditions related to such funds are met. Funds remaining
at year end for which conditions have not yet been met are reported as an
advance from grantor liability. The advance of LSC assets are subject to the
provisions of ISO's Fund Balance Regulation. LSC may, at its discretion,
request reimbursement for expenses, the return of funds, or both as a result of
noncompliance by the Organization with the terms of the grant or contract. If the
Organization terminates its legal assistance activities, all unexpended funds are
to be returned to the funding sources. Furthermore, when LSC funds are used to
acquire capital assets, the donor restriction expires as depreciation expense is
recognized on those assets, with the undepreciated balance reported as net
assets with donor restrictions.

The Organization also has revenue derived from cost-reimbursable federal and
state contracts and grants, which are. conditional upon certain performance
requirements'and/or incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts
received are recognized as donor restricted revenue. Amounts are reclassified
to support without donor restrictions as expenditures are incurred in compliance
with the specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts not yet received but
already awarded are recorded as grants and contracts receivable.

10



603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023 AND 2022

Contributions

Contributiohs are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the
Organization that is. in substance, unconditional. Donor restricted contributions
are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported
in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Unconditional pledges and grants are recorded as. made. These amounts are
recorded at the present value of the estimated fair value. Conditional pledges
and grants are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend are
substantially met and the pledges become unconditional. All contributions and
grants receivable are considered current and expected to be received within ohe
year.

Contributed Goods and Services

Donated facilities, supplies, equipment, and staff support are recorded as "In-
kind" contributions if the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or
(b) require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and
would otherwise be purchased by the Organization. Donated services
recognized as revenues and expenses in the statement of activities for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 totaled $191,553, and $338,041,
respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and cash equivalents, grants receivable, accounts payable and other
liabilities are carried in the financial statements at amounts which approximate fair
value due to the inherently short-term nature of the transactions. The fair values
determined for financial Instruments are estimates, which for certain accounts may
differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate
liquidation.

j

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents is
comprised of cash, including cash on hand, and other highly liquid investments
with an original maturity of 90 days or less.

Accrued Vacation

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Organization implemented a
new policy that allows employees to retain earned time off for the future. The
Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of
$35,538 and $24,605 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

11



603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023 AND 2022

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost for purchased items and at fair
value for donated items and'^are summarized as follows at December 31;

2023 2022

Furniture $ 8,254 $ 8,254

Equipment 66.771 66.771

\ •

75,025 75,025

Less accumulated depreciation 70.348 68.697

Furniture and equipment, net 4.677 $ 6.328

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over estimated, three to
ten-year lives. The Organization's capitalization policy is to capitalize assets with a
useful life greater than 1 year and a cost greater than $5,000. Repair and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

All property and equipment acquired by the Organization was purchased using
ISO funds. The Organization owns those assets: however, LSC has a
reversionary interest in those assets purchased with its funds.

Depreciation expense was $1,651 and $2,153 for the years ended December
31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on
a functional basis in the statement of activities. The statement of functional

expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed
to more than one program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect
costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited,
based primarily on percentage allocations calculated based on hours worked (time
and effort). The expenses that are allocated include payroll taxes, employee
benefits, space and occupancy, office supplies and expenses, communications,
library maintenance, and insurance, which are all allocated on the basis of time
and effort, as noted previously.

12



603 LEGAL AID

y

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023 AND 2022

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire
income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for Federal or State income
taxes. In .addition, the Organization has been determined by the Internal
Revenue Service not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section
509(a) of the Code. The Organization is annually required to file a Return of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS. FASB
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income
Taxes requires the Organization to report uncertain tax positions for financial
reporting purposes. The Organization had no uncertain tax positions as of
December 31, 2023 and, accordingly does not have any unrecognized tax
benefits that need to be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

Summarized Comparative Totals

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2022, from which the summarized
information was derived.

NOTE 2. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Organization maintains its cash balances with a financial institution. The
balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to a
combined total of $250,000 per financial institution. The bank balances may, at
times, exceed federally insured limits. Per the compliance requirements set forth
by the Legal Services Corporation, all funds held by 603 Legal Aid above the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit were held in a financial instrument
account within the federal institution.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, approximately 43%
and 44%, respectively, of total support and revenue was derived from the LSC
Basic Field Grant. The future existence of the Organization is dependent upon the
continued support from LSC.

NOTE 3. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The Organization regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet
its operating needs and other contractual commitments. Cash reserves in excess
of daily operational needs are invested in insured cash sweep accounts in order to
maximize investment return while maintaining safety and liquidity. Excess LSC
funds are maintained in FDIC insured checking or money market accounts.

13



603 LEGAL AID
/

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023 AND 2022

The following table reflects the Organization's financial assets as of December 31,
2023 and 2022, reduced by amounts that are not available to meet general
expenditures within one year of the statement of financial position date because of
donor and other restrictions or internal board designations.

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Total financial assets as of year end

Less amounts not available to be used within

one year:

Net assets with donor restrictions

Less'LSC restricted net assets

Total financial not available within

one year

Financial assets available to meet general
. expenditures over the next twelve months

2023

675,362

30,543
570.764

1.276.669

21,585
(6.907)

14.678

2022

382,001

12,057

408.942

803.000

344,998

(6.925)

338.073

$  1.261.991 $ 464.927

In the event of an unanticipated liquidity need, the Organization also could draw
upon $50,000 of its available line of credit, as further discussed in Note 8.

NOTE 4. GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Grants receivable, by funding category, consist of the following at December 31:

2023 2022

New Hampshire Bar Foundation - lOLTA $ 179,625 $ 105,000

IRS LITC 152,573 45,613

Campaign for Legal Services 96,207 57,980

NHLA-Call Center 43,186 77,144

NH DOJ VOCA-ARPA 75,448 64,288

Miscellaneous grants 5,948 22,598
VOCA - 4,501

LSC TIG Grant - 22,409
VAWA 17.777 9.409

Total grants receivable 570.764 $ 408.942

14



603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 5. CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of
these agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain
period and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If
expenditures were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and
regulations, the Organization might be required to repay the funds. No provisions
have been made for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not
been determined or assessed as of December 31,2023.

NOTE 6. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions represent contributions for civil legal services
as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 whose use has been limited by the donors
as to purpose and future time periods and are as follows;

2023

LSC Basic Field Grant

Website and technology improvements
Housing assistance
New Hampshire Law Library Grant
BOA Foreclosure Grant

Total net assets with donor restrictions

6,907

13,681

997

$

2022

6,925
31,399

40,000
73,077

193.597

21.585 $ 344.998

NOTE 7. LEASE COMMITMENTS

On January 1, 2022, 603 Legal Aid was required to adopt ASU 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 842). As part of implementing ASU 2016-02, 603 Legal Aid evaluated
current contracts to determine which met the criteria of a lease. The right of use
(ROU) assets represent 603 Legal Aid's right to use underlying assets for the
lease term, and the lease liabilities represent 603 Legal Aid's obligation to make
lease payments arising from these leases. The ROU assets and lease liabilities,
arise from an operating lease and a finance lease and were calculated based on
the present value of future lease payments over the lease terms. Common
expenses, classified as occupancy costs in the accompanying financial
statements, are considered a non-lease component under FASB ASC 842 and
are recognized as costs as incurred. 603 Legal Aid's leases are described
below.

603 Legal Aid has an operating lease and a finance lease agreement for building
space and a copier, respectively. Lease expenses totaled $108,420, and
$100,088 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

15



603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023 AND 2022

Lease periods range from three (3) to five (5) years with expiration dates through
August, 2026. The weighted average remaining lease term at December 31,
2023 is .95 years.

The discount rate related to the Organization's lease liability as of December 31.
2023 ranged from 3.00% to 8.50% which is based upon the stated discount rate
of one lease and the incremental borrowing rate based on the existing line of
credit. The weighted average discount rate at December 31, 2023 is 8.15%

At December 31, 2023 the right of use asset for the copier (finance lease) was
$5,506, and the lease liability was $5,681. Interest recognized during the year
ended December 31, 2023 on the finance lease totaled $49.

At December 31, 2023 the right of use asset for the building lease (operating
lease) was $84,984, and the lease liability was $84,984.

Future minimum lease payments for the above leases are as follows:

Years ending
December 31. Amount

2024 $ 90,490
2025 2,160
2026 1.620

Total undiscounted lease liability 94,270
Less Imputed interest (3.605)

Total lease liability $ 90.665

NOTE 8. LINE OF CREDIT
r"

The Organization has a revolving unsecured line of credit with a financial
institution for $50,000 with a variable Interest rate at December 31, 2023 and
2022 of 9.50% and 8.50%, respectively. No amounts have been drawn on the
line of credit and there was no outstanding balance due as of December 31,
2023 and 2022.

NOTE 9. UNEXPENDED LSC AWARDS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Organization did not fully expend
each of the LSC awards, therefore, $261,550 has been recognized and recorded
as advances from grantors at December 31, 2023.

16



603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023 AND 2022

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Organization fully expended each of
Its LSC awards, resulting in no unexpended LSC awards reported as advances
from grantor.

NOTE 10. PRIVATE ATTORNEY INVOLVEMENT fPAO

Recipients of Legal Services Corporation Basic Field Grants are required to
expend funds equal to 12.5% of the total annualized Basic Field grant award in
efforts to involve external private attorneys, law students, or other professionals
in the delivery of legal information and legal assistance to eligible clients.
Recipients may use LSC and any other grant sources to meet the PAI obligation.

The 12.5% PAI requirement for years ending December 31, 2023 and 2022 was
$140,981 and $122,583 respectively. The Organization is in compliance with this
grant condition for both years.

V  A schedule of private attorney involvement expenses across all funds consist of
the following at December 31;

2023 2022

Salaries

Payroll taxes
Fringe benefits
Operating expenses

Total Private Attorney Involvement (PAI)
expenses

108,149
9,035
15,012
24.215

194,674

15,721

24,597
38.958

$  156.411 $ 273.950

NOTE 11. PENSION PLAN

The Organization sponsors a defined contribution pension plan in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code section 401(a) for all employees who have attained
the age of twenty-one. Contributions are based on a percentage of the
employee's annual compensation: 5% for 2023 and 2022. For the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022 pension expense was $39,287 and $75,983,
respectively.

NOTE 12. RECLASStFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year's financial statements
to conform to the current year presentation. These classifications had no effect
on the previously reported change in net assets, or net asset amounts.

17



603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through June 14, 2024 the
date the financial statements were available to be issued.

/
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«03 LEGAL AID

SCHEDULE OF SUPPORT, REVENUE. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR LEGAL SERVICES CORPORATION GRANTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023

Privata

Basic Field Attorney

Gren( Involvement Total Prooertv
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grants and contracts S  602,439 $  63,856 3  666.295 $
interest income 1.945

-
1.945

Total revenues end ottier support 804.384 63.856 668.240
-

PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Salaries 379.435 44.056 423.491
\

Payrol taxes 39.029 3.681 42.710 .

Employee benefits 69.044 6.115 75.159
-

Total personnel expenses 487.508 53.852 541.360
-

OTHER EXPENSES

Space and occupancy 49.470 4,338 53,806 .

Office supplies and expenses 6,253 294 6.547 .

Communications 20.485 226 20.711 .

Library maintenance 217 5 222 .

Training and meetings 1,434 103 1,537 .

insurance 2.837 252 3,089 .

Dues and fees 1,277 5 1,282 .

Travel 1.393 46 1,439 .

Contract services 64.585 4,597 69.182 .

Miscelaneous 1,658 140 1.798 .

Depreciation
-

- -
1.651

Subtotal other expenses 149.609 10.004 159.613 1,651
Alocated administrative expenses 165.634

-
165.634

-

Total other expenses 315.243 10.004 325.247 1.651

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS 1.633
-

1.633 (1.651)

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 597
-

597 6.328

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR S  2.230 $ S  2.230 S  4.677

Totol

$  866.295
1,945

868.240

423.491

42.710

75.159

541.380

53.806

6.547

20.711

222

1.537

3.089

1,282

1,439

69.182

1.768

1.651

161.264
165.634

326.898

(18)

6.925

6,907

Sm lRd*p«nd«nt Auditor*' Rtporl
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M3 LEGAL AID

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTORrt>ROGRAM TITLE

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTORS NAME

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTORS NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDfTURES

Looai Strvlcot Cofoomtlon

Basic Field Grant 09.130010 Dired Award 3 888.258

Total LoQal Services Corporation $ 866.258

U.S. Daoartmant of Justice

VIoienca Against Women Formula Grants 10.580 New Hampshire Department of Justice 2023VAW20 S 40.000

Total U.S. Department of Justice $ 40.000

U.S. Deoartment of Treasury

Intemai Revenue Service Low Income Taxpayer CRnic 21.008 Direct Award S 1M.000

Homeowner Asststartce Fund 21.020 New Hampshire Housirtg Finance Authority HAF0014 3,333

Coronavlrus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Coronavirus Stats artd Local Rscal Recovery Funds
21.027

21.027

New Hampshire Department of Justice

New Hampshire Department of Justice

2023ARPVS01 S

2024ARPVS0t

03,321
108.198 201.517

Total U.S. Department of Treasury $ 304.850

TOTAL $ 1.213.108

/

Sm NotM to SchMlult of Exponduturos of Fodtral Avnnl*
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603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of 603 Legal Aid under programs of the federal
government for the year ended December 31, 2023..The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of 603
Legal Aid, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,
changes in net assets, or cash flows of 603 Legal Aid.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

603 Legal Aid has elected to use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 SUBRECIPIENTS

603 Legal Aid had no subrecipients for the year ended December 31. 2023.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

603 Legal Aid

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of 603 Legal Aid (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2023, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 14, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 603 Legal
Aid's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of 603 Legal Aid's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of 603 Legal Aid's internal control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees. In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency, is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internar control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether 603 Legal Aid's financial statements
are free fromi material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of This Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
June 14, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

603 Legal Aid

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federai Program
We have audited 603 Legal Aid's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement and in the Legal Services
Corporation Compliance Supplement for Audits of LSC Recipients, that could have a direct
and material effect on each of 603 Legal Aid's major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2023. 603 Legal Aid's major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, 603 Legal Aid complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Govemment Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of 603 Legal Aid and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination'of 603 Legal Aid's compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreehients applicable to 603 Legal Aid's federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on 603 Legal Aid's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance
when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher
than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of
the report on compliance, about 603 Legal Aid's compliance with the requirements of each
major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding 603 Legal Aid's compliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of 603 Legal Aid's internal control over compliance relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
and to test and report on internal control over^ compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of 603 Legal Aid's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are
required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2023-001 and 2023-002.
Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on 603
Legal Aid's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our compliance audit
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 603 Legal Aid's
response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance
and. accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program wilt not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in intemal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in Intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over corripliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in intemal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in intemal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Unifomn Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
June 14, 2024
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603 LEGAL AID

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of 603
Legal Aid.

2. No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial
statements are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of 603 Legal Aid, which
would be required to be reported in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, were
disclosed during the audit.

4. No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal
award programs are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each
Major Program and on Intemal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for 603 Legal Aid
expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)
are reported in this schedule.

7. The program tested as a major program was:

Legal Services Corporation, Basic Field Grant-ALN 09.130010

8. The threshold for distinguishing between Type A and 8 programs was $750,000.

9. 603 Legal Aid was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

0. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS-MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

Finding 2023-001: Compiiance finding - Governing Bodies
Legai Services Corporation
Basic Field Grant (ALN# 09.130010)

Condition: As of December 31, 2023, the Board of Directors was composed of other
members representing 7.14%, client members representing 35.72%, and attorney
members representing 57.14%. Attorney members were less than the required 60% of
the board of directors.
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Criteria or specific requirement; At least sixty percent (60%) of a governing body shall
be attorney members.

Cause: Lack of oversight by management.
V

Effect: Governing body may not reasonably reflect the interests of the eligible clients in,
the area served or consist of members who are supportive of the purposes of the Legal
Services Corporation Act and have an interest in, and knowledge of, the delivery of
quality legal services to the poor.

Questioned costs: No questioned costs were identified.

Recommendation: A procedure be implemented to ensure that the Organization
remains in compliance and does an internal review to ensure that board composition is
maintained. Each set of board meeting minutes could contain a snapshot showing
calculation of board composition in response to the requirements of 45 CFR 1607.3.

Finding 2023-002: Compliance finding - LSC Financial Guide
Legal Services Corporation
Basic Field Grant (ALN# 09.130010)

Condition: Several policies and/or procedures in the Draft Accounting Manual have not
been updated to take the new LSC Financial Guide into consideration. Changes are
actively being made by management but are not yet codified in an updated manual. The
new policies are a work in progress that would benefit from more dedicated,
concentrated effort to substantively update the manual.

Criteria or specific requirement: The LSC Financial Guide (Guide) is designed to
assist recipients and subrecipients with fiscal responsibilities in the stewardship of grant
funds provided by LSC. The effective date of the Guide is January 1, 2023. The Guide
contains several new requirements that recipients must adopt, and best practice
recommendations for financial management, including example reports and methods of
compliance with specific requirements.

Cause: Employee attrition and lack of resources.

Effect: Required and recommended internal controls and accounting policies and
procedures not contained in existing system.

Questioned costs: No questioned costs were identified.

Recommendation: Completion of an updated Accounting Manual, approved by the
Board of Directors, taking into consideration the new requirements of the Guide.
Completion of the Self-Assessment Questionnaire (Appendix 9) of the Guide on an
annual or periodic basis. The referenced questionnaire is a tool for recipient's
management to direct attention to practicable revisions of accounting procedures or
internal controls to strengthen, improve, or simplify the existing system. Review the
questionnaire at least annually, complete, and file for future reference.
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3IfGAL

93 North State Street, Suite 200, Concord, NH 03301

Phone: 603-224-3333 I Fax: 603-224-6067

Corrective Action Plan

Findings

2023-001

Planned Corrective Action: The Organization has already taken the necessary
corrective action steps to be In compliance with this regulation. In January 2024, 603
Legal Aid communicated with our LSC Program Officer to review the Board of Directors
composition requirements and discuss the plan for bringing the Organization Into
compliance. A new McCoilum attorney joined the Board in January 2024, bringing 603
Legal Aid into compfiance.

Additionally, the Chair of the Board Development Committee has agreed to create and
maintain a running list of Board members for ongoing oversight throughout the year to
ensure continued compliance. ^

Responsible Person: Ariel Clemmer
Date of Completion: Compliant as of January 2024

2023-002

Planried Corrective Action: We agree with the need for updated policies and/or
procedures to be codified In the Organization's Accounting Manual to ensure compliance
with the new 2023 LSC Financial Guide requirements. In 2022, 603 Legal Aid drafted a
set of accounting policies based on the previous Financial Guide and operations at the
time (which Included different staffing positions to those in place at present). The
Organization currently has a temporary consultant filling in for the Senior Accountant
position while a permanent hire Is found. Working with the Board Treasurer, he is in the
process of updating the 603 Legal Aid 2022 draft of policies to reflect changes in the new
LSC Financial Guide as well as operational changes at 603 Legal Aid.

This work is expected to be handed off to the permanent Senior Accountant when hired,
who will be responsible for ongoing oversight of the Organization's Accounting Manual to
ensure compliance.

Responsible Person: Temporary Consultant, Senior Accountant
Date of Completion: December 31, 2024

Sincerely,

Ariel Clemmer

Executive Director

LSC
America's Parincr ftllloniinmPII _ NTW HAMPSHIRE
for Equal Justice NyLHMrHlbll BaR FOUNDATION

linrORUfilttSOlVlCB:.H t;. 7in'..rt? ;i<ii n j| r..js
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603 LEGAL AID

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023

•  ̂

Finding 2022-001 - Financial Statement - Significant Deficiency

Condition; The Executive Director (ED) receives an email from Checkmate v/hen the
payroll is completed (or finalized) that includes a link to the final payroll register and other
reports. It is at this point that the ED would log in to Checkmate and review the final report
against what was approved. There was no indication that this was ever done. It was not
part of the documented procedures that were communicated by Squaretail to In-house
accounting during training, nor did the ED ever give any indication that they performed this
step.

Recommendation: In order to provide greater control over payroll, we suggest that
management review the final Checkmate payroll report for each payroll period prior to the
pay date. We also suggest that documentation of the review of these reports be made on
the reports and be maintained.

Current Status: Corrective action has been taken to address this item satisfactorily.

Finding 2022-002: Compliance finding - Eligibility

Condition: Cases were accepted with over income and/or over assets with no waivers or
offsetting expenses present; Client Agreement and Referral Form (CARP) was sent to
client and never returned, yet case was placed with Pro Bono attorney; Client was over
income but had unreimbursed medical expenses and due to the listed expenses not being
captured in the adjustments, the case was considered not income eligible, but should have
been eligible; Applicant withdrew from process before records were provided, leading to no
services being provided regardless.

Recommendation: A procedure be implemented to ensure that the Organization remains
in compliance and does an internal review to ensure all required documentation is in the
client files.

Current Status: Corrective action has been taken to address this item satisfactorily.

Finding 2022-003: Compliance finding - Reporting

Condition: The Report on Emergency Non-Priority Cases submitted late by 9 days, the
Annual Report on Review of Priorities was drafted and approved by Board, but not
submitted to LSC, and the Special Grant Conditions #3 progress report was due on or
before 8/1/2022 and was submitted nearly 2 months late on September 26, 2023.

Recommendation: A procedure be implemented to ensure that the Organization remains
in compliance and does an internal review to ensure all required reports are completed in a
timely manner.

Current Status: Corrective action has been taken to address this item satisfactorily.
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ffS'i^orth'Sfate'Sereet, Suit^ ZOO, ConcoM; NH 03301'
Phoney 6p3^224'3333 j Fax: 603-224-6067:

Board of Directors List - 2024

First Name

(preferred name)
Last Name CM; Mc; O Designation

Original
Term Start

Term End

(June)
Committees

Alexandra CLexi) Cote Mc Secretary 2025 Executive;#Personne!

Alicia Fiore CM 2025 2028

Brian Shaufthnessy Mc 44348 2027 Re-location

Brittany Hunt CM Client-EliEible 2024 Joint Racial Justice

Diane (Dee) Dow CM Client-Eligible 2023 Board Development;#Pro Bono Advisory

Elizabeth (Liz) Lahey Mc 2024 Joint Racial Justice;#Personhel

Jacquai Heyward CM 2025 2028

Kaitlyn O'Neill Mc 2025 Pro Bono Advisory

Kevin Collimore Mc 2023 2026 Re-location;#Personnel;#Finance

Lyndsay Robinson Mc 2024 2027 Board Developnient;#Pro Bono Advisory

Melinda Gehris Mc Chair 2025 Exec ut ive; # F i nance

Nora Fiore CM Client-Eligible 2025 Pro Bono Advisory

Patricia (Tricia) Wentworth O Treasurer 2022 2025 Executive;#Finance

Rory Pamell Mc Vice-Chair 44348 2026

Executive;#Finance;#Board Development;#Joint
Campaign for Legal Services;#Pro Bono
Advisory;#Re-location"

AtiWtlc^!* (bc.her.
fw p)tn) hwte lU

fisiUfatLsiwias

Bar Foundation
^TlSi
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UV?;
93 Ndrth^te'5fre€t, 'Sufte^200.'Concord, NH 03301

Pho/ie: 603-224-3333 \ Fix: 603'22^-60€7

Key Personnel

Name Title Salary

Margaret (Maggie) Florino Project Coordinator 60,000.00

I'AnieilcalsRirtMr

Liv*.

_ , _NWiiV»irwHiiie
Bar Foundation

tt »if i,nim»»»*» **
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M;iggie riorino

PROJLCI COORDINATOR

Summary
Passionate about creating and facilitating accessible legal services in the state of New

Hampshire, with the bulk of my experience ft>cuslng on advocacy for indigent citizens

and survivors'of domestic violence. Eager to learn and grow my career and skills

within the legal field.

Experience

CXDVE PROJECT COORDINATOR (APRIL 2024 • PRESENT)

DOVE PROJECT ASSISTANT COORDINATOR (SEPTEMBER 2023 - APRIL 2024)

603 Legal Aid

• Oversee the Domestic Violence Emergency Project (DOVE), which offers free legal representation to low-income

survivors across the state at Final Domestic Violence and Stalkir>g Restraining Order Hearings.

• RecrutL traia and support Pro Bor>o volunteer attorneys to represent survivors of domestic violence.

• Maintain collaborative partnership with UNH Franklin Pierce School of Law and their Daniel Webster Scholar

Program.

• Organize annual DOVE Miniseries course in collaboration with the University of New Hampshire's Daniel

Webster Scholar program.

• Collaborate with all twelve NH Crisis Centers, New Hampshire Legal Assistance, and the New Hampshire

Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violertce to promote streamlined, cornpassionate advocacy and organize

legal senrices on behalf of survivors

• Provide technical assistarxie and guidance to volunteer attorneys, court staff, law enforcement, crisis center and

social ser\^e agencies, and partrter legal service providers.

« Facilitate arxj execute community education seminars regarding domestic violence and stalking with

community and legal service partner organizations.

• Successfully plan and implement yearly in-depth legal trainings for volunteer attorneys and crisis center

agefKles.

• Foster collaborative relatior^ips with residing and retired judges, justices, attorneys, and legal professionals In

the state of New Hampshire.

« Coordinate legal services for over sixty clients at any given time via direct casework.

• Collect ar>d organize data to assist in grant reporting, maximize efficiency, and promote database accuracy.

• Ensure quarterly arxJ annual compliance with, and rer>ewal of, federal Violence Against Women Act (VAWA)

STOP Grant Program funding via data reporting and clear communication of deliverables and goals with the

Office on Violence Against Women (OFW)-

• Assist with quarterly and annual renewal grant reports for the Department of Justice VOCA (Victims of Crime

Act) Grant fundirtg.
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Mriggii; riorino

PR03LCr COOPDINAIOR

CRIMINAL DEFENSE & FAMILY LAW PARALEGAL

BemazzanI Law, PLLC

April 2022 • September 2023

• Assisted senior attorr>eys with both criminal and ̂ mily matters. irKluding:

e Felonies, misdemeanors, and violations

o Criminal record annulments

o DCYF

o Parenting

o Divorce

o Guardianship

e Prenups/Postnups

« Worked closely with senior paralegals to execute proper policies, procedures, and preparations for trials in the

femity division and superior court

• Drafted extensive, thorough motions for criminal and family cases, and filed in circuit and superior courts.

• Drafted and executed service of subpoenas

• Engaged the services of private investigators court reporters forensic psychologists, and expert witnesses.

• Meticulously tracked billabie hours

• Communicated ethically artd efficiently with clients opposing counsel, and Court personnel.

« Reviewed and processed discove'ry for criminal and family matters.

• Gathered testimony from witnesses

• Organized aitd analyzed firuncial disclosures for family matters

« Maintained physical files and pleadirrgs

• 'Worked with the DOVE Project and 603 Legal Aid to coordinate Pro Bor>o representation for prompt hearings

LEGAL ASSISTANT

New Hampshire Public Defer>der

:une 2021 - April 2022

• Assisted five senior and managlr^ attorr^eys with over 100 cases each.

• Drafted and filed motions and specialist invoices in the New Hamr>shire District Family, and Superior Courts-

• Received, logged, and organized State's discovery.

• Corresponded with clients to promote connectedness with legal counsel, sent notifications for hearings and

appointments, and supplied transparerKy tfrroughout process.

• Scheduled client meetings ar>d organized appdntments on attorrrey calendars.

• Utilized the DefenderData software system to organize client information and documents. )

• Communicated with forensic p^hologlsts, mental health professionals, interpreters, prosecutors, and

transportation services to arrar>ge appointments for clients

• Trained new employees to ensure adhererKe to organization practices ar>d policies



o'crw ̂

PPOECr COOIUDINArOR

Education

BACHELOR OF ARTS, POLITICAL SCIENCE AND ADMINISTRATION (2023)

Southern New Hampshire University

• Graduated Summa Cum Laude

• Special focus in Communications. Public Relations, arKl Public Administration

• Trartsferred from'the University of Vermont in May 2022

References

• Taylor Flagg, 60J Lego/ Aid

o

o

• Emily Hayes, Momeou Low

o

o

• Dennis ThMerge, Esq.

o

Additional Trainings & Experience
NH Attorney General's Partnering for a Future Without Violeryce Conference (2023 & 2024)

NH Human Traffickir>g Collaborative Task Force Trainir>g (2024)

International Conference on Sexual Assault Domestic Violence, and the Cyde of Justice -San

Diego, CA (2024)

Merrimack County Sexual Assault Response Team Member (2023 & 2024)

Mental Health First Aid (2024)

KnowBe4 AdvarKed Cyber Securi^ Training (2023 & 2024)

NH Women's Bar Association Annual Family Law CLE (2024)

American Bar Association Advanced Interstate Custody Training (2024)

American Bar Association Trauma-Informed Lawyering; Compassionate Approaches for

Client Support (2024)

American Bar Association's Commission on Domestic & Sexual Violence Write & Tell Training

with Chanel Miller (2024) 1

National Center for State Courts - Legal Advice vs. Legal Information • A Court Staff Essential

(2024)

National Center for State Courts - Data Dives (2024)



FORM NUMBER C-l (version 11/2021)

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

[. Identification and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address
1 Granite Place, South
Concord. NH 03301

1.3. Grantee Name

Manchester Police Department
1.4. Grantee Address

405 Valley Street
Manchester. NH 03103

1.5 Grantee Phone

(603) 792-5400
1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-201510-5587-
072-500574

1.7. Completion Date
12/31/2025

1.8. Grant Limitation

$93,000

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency
Kathleen Carr

1.10. State Agency Tele;
(603)271-1234

Dhone Number

"1"®' ''■f Lf "i"- ""y publicmeeting requirement for acceptance of this grant inHnriinp if «ppiu^Ki.. r^a ^i:0<-h
1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signor 1
Peter A. Mart, Chief of Police

Grantee Signature 2 Name & Title of Grantee Signor 2

Grantee Signature 3 Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3

, — ■ IMC ui oiuie Agency Mgnorts;
Thomas D. Kaempfer, Deputy Director of Admin1.15. Approval by Attorn^ General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval req'iired)

By: /! Assistant Attorney General, On: 1 /16/25
1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)
ly: f _

.. On: / /

A  ̂'a provided by the State of New Hampshire actingthrough the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as 'hhe r
Identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as «the Grantee"), shall perform that work identificTa^
b.i.sCtaSsss'i't'sj.jr'' ''™" ™'»'T»«« "f-"1.

Page I of35
Initials:

Date: ia\ta.\aH



4.

4.1,

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5J,

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVERED. Except as otherwix specifically provided for herein, tte
Grantee shall perform the Project in. and with respect to. the State of New
Hampshire. 9 2
EFFECTIVE OATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT

Thb Agreement, and alt obligations of the panies hereunder, shall become
efTectivc on the date on the date of approval of this. Afreemem by the OoverTtor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if retpitred (block 1.16). or upon 9.3.
signature by the Stale Agency as shown in block 1.14 (*^e Effective Date*).
Except as otherwise specincaliy provided herein, the Project, including all reports 9.4.
required by this Agreemoit, shall be completed in ITS entjret>- prior to the dw in
block 1.7 (hereinaAer refbr^ to as 'The Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNTrVOUCHERS: PAYMENT'

The Grant Amount is identined and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C,
attached hereto. 9.5.
The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C.
In accordance with the provisions set forth In EXHIBIT C. and In consideration 10.
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold fh)m the amount otherwise
payable to the Grantee under this subparagraph 5.3 those suihs required, or
permined. to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the State of the Gram amoum shall be the only, and the complete
payment to' the Grantee for all expeitses, of whatever nature, mcuired by the
Grantee in the performance hereof, attd shall be the only, and the complete,
compensation to the Graiitee for the Project The State shall have no'liabilitics to II.
the Grantee other than'the Grant Amount 11.1.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding
uhe.xpectcd ciroimstances, in no event shall the total of all payments authorized, jj.i.i
or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant lintitation set fonh in'block 1.8 of 11.1.2
these general provisions. 11 I 3
COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS In 11.1.4
connection with the performance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all 11.2.
statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or municipal
authorities which shall imposc any obligations or duty upon the GMtee, including 11.2.1
the acquisition of any and alt necessary permits and RSA 31-95-b.
RECORDS aitd ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date and the tlate seven (7) yean after the Complctioa
Date, unless otherwise require by the grant terms or the Agency, the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in connection with the 11.2.2

Project, including, but not limited to. costs of administration, transportation,
insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and services. Such accounts
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and oih^ similar documents.
Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years afler the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the gram terms or the Agency pursuant to' 11.2.3
subparagraph 7.1, at any lime during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as
often as the State shalf demand, the Grantee shall make avaibble'to the State all 11.2.4
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce siKh records, and to'make audits 12.
of all contracts, invoices; matertals, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as thst 12.1.
term is hereinafter defined), and other inLformation relating to all mstten covered
b>' this Agreement As u^ in this paragraph, "Grantee" includes all persons,
natural or fictional, alTiliaied with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with, (he entity identified as theGrantee'in block 1.3 of these provisions
PERSONNEL,

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide ail personnel necessary to perform 12.2.
the Project. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the Project shall
be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perfonn such Project under all applicable laws.
The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall hot permit any subcontractor, subgrintee. I2.'3.
or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort
to perform Ae Project, to hire any person who has a contractual relationship with
the State, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or appointed,
liie Grant OfTKer shall be the representative of die State hereunder. In the event
of any dispute hereunder, the inteipretaiibn of this Agreement by the Grant T2.4.
Officer, and hisAier decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in this Agreemeni, the word "data" shall mean ail infoimatioti and things 13.
developed or obtained during the. performance of, or acquired or developed by
reason of. this Agreement, includirig. but not limited to, all studies, reports.ifiles, -
formutoe, surveys, maps, chans. sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,

computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, ail whether finished or unfinished.
Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Grantee shall gram to
Che State, or any person designatnl b>- it. unrcstricteid access to all data for
examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any other
purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subjea to cop>-nghi in the United States or an)- other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been received
from'the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the proper^ of the State, and shall be returned to the State
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
shall first Kcur.

The State, and an)'one it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use. in whole or in part, all data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
(hb Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder. including,
whhoul limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. are contingent upon
Ihe.tyailability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the State
be li^le for any payments hereunder in txccss of such available or approprbied
funds. In the event of ■ reduction or termination of diose funds, the State shall
have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, ifever. and
shall have the right to terminate thb Agrecmem immedaiely upon giving the
Grantee notice of such termination.

EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES

Any one or more ofthe following acts or ombsions ofthe Grantee shall constitute
an event of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of Default"):
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder: or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder: or
Failure to perfonn any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreemem.
Upon the occurrence ofany Event of Defauh. the State may take any one, or more,
or all, ofthe following actions:
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and requiring it
to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser specification of time,
thirty (30).days from the date of the notice: and if the Event of Default b not
timely remedied, tcrmihale thb Agreement, efTeciive two (2) days after giving the
Grantee notice of termination: and
Give the Grantee t written notice specifying the Event of Default and suspending
all payments to be made under thb Agreement and ordering that the portion ofthe
Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Grantee during the period
ftom the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that the
Grantee has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to the Grantee; and
Set offagalnst any other obligation the State may owe to the Grantee any darhages
the State suffers b)- reason ofany Event of Default: and
Treat the ̂ reemcntas breached and pursue any ofits remedies at law or in equity,
or both.

TERMINATION

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other dian
the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver to the Gram Officer, not
later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
peribrmed. and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date oftermination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
proybipiis. the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
the Grantee to receive Ihat'portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of termination.

In the event of Terminatibn under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provbions, the approval of such a Tcrmination 'Rcpon by the State shall in no
event relieve the Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a resuh of the Grantee's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in ihb Agreemem to ihe conoaiy. either the State or,
except where notice defauh has been given to the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee,
may terminate thb Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of (he Grantee,
and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New Hampshire or of
the governing body of the locality or localities in which die Project b to be
performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or
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14.

15,

16.

19.

20.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17,1.2

8ppT0\'al of the undeftaking or carrying out of such Project, shall participate in 17.2.
any decision relying to this Agreement which affects his or her petsonai interest
or the interest ofany corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he-or she have any personal :or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.
GRANTEE'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of thb
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgrahtee of 11.
the Grantee are in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
'nor employees of the Slate. Neither the Grantee nor any of its officers,
employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees. shall have authority
to bind the State nor art they, entitled to any of the benefits, workmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or
otherwise transfer any interest in .this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State: None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgrahled by the Grantee other than as set forth in E.xhibit B without the prior
w-ritlen consent of die State.
■INDEMNIFICATION. The Gran^ shall defend, indemnify and hold'haimtess
the State, its olTicen and employees, from and against ar^- ar^ all losses suffered
by the State, its olTiceia and employees. and any and all claims, liabilities or
penalties asserted against the State, its ofnccrs and employees, by or on behalf
of any person, on account of, ba^ on. resulting from, arising out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out dO the acts or omissions .of the Grantee or
subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstuding the
foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiverofthe
sovereign immunity ofthe State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State.
This covenani shall survive the terminailon of this agreement.
INSURANCE. -
The Grantee shall, at its OH-n expense; obtain and maintain in force, or shall
require any subcontractor, tubgrantce or assignee performing Project t^'oik to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the beneftt of the State, the following
insurance';
Staditory workers' compensation and employees liability insurartce for all
employees engaged in the performance ofthe Project, and
General liability insurance t^ainst all claims of bodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less than $l,(XK>.000 per occurrence and $2.(XX}.000
aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and S5(X).000.for propert)'
damage in any one incident; and

22.-

23.

24.

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 ofthisparagraph shaJIbe the standard
form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters occeptable
to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New Hampshire. Grantee
shall furnish to the State, certificates of insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance
required under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the e.xpiration
date of each insurance policy..
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
after any Event of Dcfbult shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to
that Event; or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a part)' hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by ccrtincd mail, postage
prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by on instniment in MTiting signed by the parties hereto and only aRer approval of.
such-amendment waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the State
ofNew Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assignees. The captions and contents ofthe "subject" blank are used only as
a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIF.S. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and thb Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. Thb Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each ofNchich shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding' betvveen the parties, and supersedes all prior
agrements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional or modify'ing provisions set forth in
Exhibh'A hereto are incorporated as pait of this agreerhent.
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EXHIBITA

Special CoDditlons
Grant# 15JOVW-24-GG-00513-STOP

Manchester Police Department as the Grantee (hereinafter referred to as "Subrecipient") shall be
compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and specifications detailed below, which are
subject to annual review.

1. The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful access
to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes discrimination
on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may entail providing
language assistance services, including oral and written translation when necessary. The U.S.
Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them comply with these
requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at wvAv.lcp.gov.

2. The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal, or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the Subrecipient
on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability, a copy of the
finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants Management
Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs,
810 7th Sfreet, NW, Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional information regarding your
obligations under civil rights please reference the state website at
http://www.doj.nh.gov/grants-management/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are awarded
funding from this office, civil rights compliance will be monitored by this office, and the Office
for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S.Departmenl of Justice. ;

3. The Subrecipient will comply (and will'require any subrecipienls or contractors to comply) with
any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, which may include the Omnibus Crime Control and
Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); the Victims of Crime Act (34 U.S.C. §
20110(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. §. 11182(b)); i
the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. ,§ 12291(b)(13)); the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42
U.S.C. § 2000d); the Indian Civil Rights Act (25 U.S.C. §§ 1301-1303); the Rehabilitation Act

■ of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. §§
12131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681, 1683, 1685-86); and the
Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07). It will also comply with Ex: Order
13279, Equal Protection ofthe Laws for Faith-Based and Community Organizations; Executive
Order 13559, Fundamental Principles and Policymaking Criteria for Partnerships with
Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood Organizations; and the DOJ implementing regulations at
28C.F.R: Part38.

4. Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that paid for,
similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per day or $81.25 per hour.
When the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a proportionate hourly rate (excluding travel and
subsistence costs), a written prior approval is required. Prior approval requests require additional
justification.
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant U 15JOVW-24-GG-00513-STOP

5. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH Department of
Justice (NHDOJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be billed to any federal or
state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or supervised while at the NHDOJ
for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the NH DOJ.

6. The Subrecipient understands that grants ̂ e funded for the grant award period noted on the grant award
document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future years.

7. Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the subrecipient that relate to conduct
during the period of performance also is a material requirement of this award.

By accepting this award on behalf of the subrecipient, the authorized subrecipient official accepts
all material requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally executed by the
authorized recipient official, all assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the
subrecipient that relate to conduct during the period of performance.

Failure to comply with any one or more of these award requirements, whether a condition set out
in full below, a condition incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification
related to conduct during the award period may result in the Office on Violence Against Women
("OVW") or the NH Dept. of Justice ("NHDOJ") taking appropriate action with respect to the
subrecipient and the award. Among other things, OVW or NHDOJ may withhold award funds,
disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. DOJ, including OVW and NHDOJ, also may
take other legal action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this
award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution
(including under 18U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead
to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false claims or otherwi^
(including under 310.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its
terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the
maximum effccf permitted by law. Should it be held, instead, that the provision is utterly invalid
or unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this award.

8. Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements and DOJ Grants Financial Guide

The subrecipient agrees to comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by the
Department of Justice (DOJ) in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200 Uniform
Requirements"), and the current edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted on the
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant # 15JOVW-24-GG-00513-STOP

OVW website, including any updated version that may be posted during the period of
performance.

The recipient also agrees that all financial records pertinent to this award, including the general,
accounting ledger and all supporting documents, are subject to agency review throughout the life
of the award, during the close-out process^ and for three years after submission of the final
Federal Financial Report (SF-425) or as long as the records are retained, whichever is longer,
pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.334, 200.337.

9. Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding

If the subrecipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the subrecipient
receives any other award of federal funds during the period of performance for this award, the
subrecipient promptly must determine whether fiinds from any of those other federal awards
have been, are being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical cost
items for which funds are provided under this award.

If so, the subrecipient must promptly notify the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit in writing of
the potential duplication, and, if so requested by the NHDOJ, must seek a budget modification or
change-of-project-scope to eliminate any inappropriate duplication of funding

10. Requirements related to System for Award Management and unique entity identifiers

The subrecipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award
Management (SAM), currently accessible at https://www.sam.gov. This includes applicable -
requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as maintaining current information in

,  SAM.

The subrecipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to
first tier subrecipienls (first-tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities
that do not acquire and provide the unique entity identifier required for SAM registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers (UEI) are
posted on the OVW website at https://www.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions (Award
Condition:-Requirements related to System for Award Management (SAM) and unique entity
identifiers), and are incorporated by reference here.

11. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

» The subrecipient must ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United
States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or any
subrecipient atany tier) properly verifies the employment eligibility of the individual who is
being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. § 1324a(a)(l) and (2).

The details of the recipient's obligations under this condition are posted on the OVW website at
https://www.justice.gov/pvw/awafd-conditions (Award Condition: Employment eligibility
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Special Conditions
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/

verification for hiring under award) and are incorporated by reference here.

12. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information
(PII)

The recipient (and any subrCcipient at any tier) must have written procedures in place to respond
in the event of an actual or imminent breach (as defined in 0MB M-17-12) if it (or a
subrecipient)- 1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or
disposes of personally identifiable information (PII) (as defined in 2 C.F.R. 200.1) within the
scope of an OVW grant-funded program or activity, or 2) uses or operates a Federal information
system (as defined in 0MB Circular A-130).

The subrecipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent
breach of PII to an OVW Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence of an
actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach.

In the event of an actual, or imminent, breach of Personally Identifiable Information of a U.S
Department of Justice funded program or activity by a subrecipient, the subrecipient must have a
procedure in place that indicates that the Grants Management Unit will be notified of the breach
by the end of the business day (4:00 PM EST) that the breach was reported. An e-mail will be
sent to Grants@doj,nh.gov, which e-mails every staff member in the Grants Management Unit,
notifying the Unit of the breach. The GMU Administrator, or designee, will respond to the
subrecipient's e-mail notifying receijst of the notification by the end of the business day that it
was received. If the subrecipient docs not receive a confirmation e-mail from the GMU the
subrecipient shall call the NH Department of Justice main number, (603)271 -3658, and request
to speak to the GMU and report the breach.

Subrecipients must have written procedures that document the process of notifying the GMU in
the event of a PII breach. Written procedures will be verified during onsite monitoring's
conducted by the GMU.

13. Unreasonable restrictions on competition under the award; association with federal
government.

No recipient (or subrecipient, at any tier) may (in any procurement transaction) discriminate
against any person or entity on the basis of such person or entity's status as an "associate of the
federal government" (or on the basis of such person or entity's status as a parent, affiliate, or
subsidiary of such an associate), except as expressly set out in 2 C.F.R. 200.319(a) or as
specifically authorized by DOJ.

The details of the recipient's obligations under this condition are posted on the OVW website at
https://wvyw.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions (Award Condition: Unreasonable restrictions on
competition under the award; association with federal government) and are incorporated by
reference here.
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14. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including
reporting requirements and OVW authority to tenhinate award)

The recipient, and any subrecipicnt ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements (including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct
related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipients
("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of the
recipient or of any subrecipicnt.

The details of the subrecipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in
persons are posted on the OVW web site at https://www.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions
(Award Condition: Prohibited conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in
persons (including reporting requirements and OVW authority to terminate award)), and are
incorporated by reference here.

15. Determinations of siiitability to Interact with participating minors

This condition applies to this award if it is indicated in the application for the award (as approved
by DOJ) (or in the application for any subaward at any tier), the DOJ funding announcement
(solicitation), or ari associated federal statute that a purpose of some or all of the activities to be
carried out under the award (whether by the recipient or a subrecipicnt at any tier) is to benefit a
set of individuals under 18 years of age.

The recipient, and any subrecipicnt at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before
cer^in individuals may interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of
an individual's employment status. The details of this requirement are posted on the OVW web
site at https://www.juslice-gov/ovw/award-conditions (Award condition: Determination of
suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with participating
minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

16. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of
conferences, meetings, trainings, and other events

The recipient, and any subrecipicnt ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with ail applicable
aws, regulations, policies, and official DOJ guid^ce (including specific cost limits; prior
approval and reporting requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for
expenses related to conferences (as that term Is defined by DOJ), including the provision of food
and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award
appears on the OVW website at https://www.Justice.gov/ovw/confercnce-planning.

17. OV\Y Training Giiiding Principles

The recipient understands and agrees that any training or training materials developed or
delivered with funding provided under this award must adhere to the OVW Training Guiding
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EXHIBIT A
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Principles for Grantees and Subgrantecs, available at
https://www.justice.gOv/ovw/rcsources-and-faqs-grantees#Discretionary.

18. Effect of failure to address audit issues

The subrecipieht understands and agrees that the NHDOJ (and OJP or OVW, as appropriate)
may withhold award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as determined by the
NHDOJ) the subrecipient does not satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues from
audits required by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other
outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits, investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

.19. Potential imposition of additional requirements

The subrecipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the
NHDOJ (and OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this award, if
the subrecipient is designated as "high- risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

20. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28
C.F.R. Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpan
E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal employment opportunity program.

21. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28
C.F.R Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgfantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 (amended effective April 3, 2024).

Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of
discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or
refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements
that relate tocngagmg in or conducting explicitly religious activities and requires that recipients
and subrecipients that are social service providers provide written notice to beneficiaries or
prospective beneficiaries of certain protections as described in 28 C.F.R. 38.6(b).

22. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28
C.F.R Part 54

The, recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in
certain "education programs."

"A
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant U I5JOVW-24-GG-00513-STOP

23. Restrictions on "lobbying" and policy development

in general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds may not be used by the recipient, or any
siibrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly Or indirectly, in support of the enactment,
repeal, modification or adoption of any law, regulation or policy, at any level of government, in
order to avoid violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1913. The recipient, or any subrecipient ("subgrantee")
may, however, use federal funds to collaborate with and provide information to federal, statCj
local, tribal and territbrial public officials and agencies to develop and implement policies and
develop and promote state, local, or tribal legislation or model codes designed to reduce or
eliminate domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking (as those terms are
defined in 34 U.S.C. § 12291(a)) when such collaboration and provision of information is
consistent with the activities otherwise authorized under this grant program.

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OVW from being used by the
recipient, or any subrecipient at any tier; to pay any person,to influence (or attempt to influence)
a federal agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them)
with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract,
subcontract, or loan, or with.respect to actions such as renewing, extending, or modifying any
such award. See 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an exception
that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organiizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the subrecipient is to
contact the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit.for guidance and may not proceed without the
express prior written approval of NHDOJ.

24. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds for
this fiscal year

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
restrictions on the use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent
restrictions, for each fiscal year, are set out at https://www.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditiohs
(Award Condition: General appropriations-law restrictions on use of federal award funds), and
are incorporated by reference here. Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of
federal funds by a recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an
appropriations-law restriction, the subrecipient is to contact the NHDOJ Grants Management
Unit for guidance and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of NHDOJ.

25. Reporting Potential Fraud, Waste, and Abuse, and Similar Misconduct

The recipient and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the
Inspector General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient,
contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds under this award ~ (I)
submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil
violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct.
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Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or miscpnduct involving or relating to funds under this award
should be reported to the 010 by- (I) online submission accessible via the GIG webpagc at
https://oig.justice.gov/hotlinc/grant-complaint (select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail directed
to: U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General, Investigations Division, ATTN:
Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20530; (3) by facsimile
directed to the DOJ OIG Fraud Detection Office (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at (202) 616-9881
(fax).. '

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at https://oig.iustice.i:ov7hoiline.

26. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgrantee") under this award, or entity that receives a
procurement contract or subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee
or contractor to sign ah internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or
otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of
waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal ^
department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to
contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified
information). Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented information), or any other
form issued by a federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure of classified
information.

1. Iri accepting this award, the subrecipient-

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or
statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently
restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notiified that it is or has been requiring its employees or
contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport
to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will
immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written
notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption
oO such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency. i

2. If the subrecipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgranis"),
procurement contracts, or both—

a. it represents that-

(1) it has determined that riO other entity lhat:the subrecipienl's application proposes may or will
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receive award funds (whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement contract, or
' subcontract under a procurement contract) either requires or has required internal

confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently
prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this
representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor entity
that receives funds under this award is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to
execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or
restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any
further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification
to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption oO such
obligations only if,expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

27. Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all
applicable provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under
specified circumstances, discrimination againist an employee as reprisal for the employee's
disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a gross waste of
federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger
to public health or safety; or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

1

The subrecipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native
language of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award,
the subrecipient is to contact the NHDOJ or (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

28. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to.Executive Order 13513j "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1,2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients
("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies banning employees from text messaging while
driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this award, and to establish
workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

29. Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated high risk by a federal
grant-making agency outside of DOJ.

If the recipient is designated high risk by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ,
currently or at any time during the course of the period of performance under this award, the
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subrecipient must disclose that fact and certain related information to OVW by email to
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high risk includes any status under
which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the recipient's past
performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient.

The recipient's disclosure must include the following: (1) the federal awarding agency that
currently designates the recipient high risk; (2) the date the recipient was designated high risk;
(3) the high-risk point of contact at ̂ at federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and
email address); and (4) the reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding
agency.

30. Availability of general terms and conditions on OVW website

The subrecipient agrees to follow the applicable set of general terms and conditions that are
available at https://www.Justice.gov/ovw/award-cohdiiions. These do not supersede any specific
conditions in this award document. )

31. Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements

The subrecipient agrees to comply with all relevant statutory and regulatory requirements, which
may include, among other relevant authorities, the Violence Against Women Act of 1994, P.L.
103-322, the violence Against Women Act of 2000, P.L. 106-386, the Violence Against Women
and Department of Justice Reauthorization Act of2005, P.L. 109-162, the Violence Against
Wbttien Reauthorization Act of 2013, P.L. 113-4, the Violence Against Women Act
Reauthorization Act of 2022, P.L. 117-103, the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of
1968, 34 U.S.C. 10101 ct scq., and the OVWs implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 90.

32. Compliance with solicitation requirements

The subrecipient agrees that it must.be in compliance with requirements outlined in the
solicitation under which the approved application was submitted, the applicable Solicitation
Companion Guide, and any program-specific frequently asked questions,(FAQs) on the OVW
website (https://www.justice.gov/ovw/resources-and-faqs-grantees). The program solicitation.
Companion Guide, and any program specific FAQs are hereby incorporated by reference into
this award.

33. VAWA 2013 DondtscrimiDation condition

The subrecipient acknowledges that 34 U.S.C. § 1229l(b)(l3) prohibits subrecipients of OVW
awards from excluding, denying benefits to, or discriminating against any person on the basis of
actual or perceived race, color, religion, national origin, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation,
or disability in any program or activity funded in whole or in part by OVW. Subrecipients may
provide sex-segregated or sex-specific programming if doing so is necessary to the essential
operations of the program, so long as the subrecipient provides comparable services to those who
cannot be provided with the sex-segregated or sex-specific programming.
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The subrecipieht agrees that it will comply with this provision. The subrecipient also agrees to
ensure that any subrecipients ("subgrantees") at any tier will comply with this provision.

34. Misuse of award funds

The subrecipient understands and agrees that misuse of award funds may result in a range of
penalties, including suspension of current and future funds, suspension or debarment from
federal grants, recoupment of monies provided under an award, and civil and/or criminal
penalties.

35. Limitation on use of funds to approved activities

The subrecipient agrees that grant funds will be used only for the purposes described in the
subrecipieht's application, unless the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit determines that any of
these activities are out of scope or unallowable. The subrecipient must not undertake any work or
activities that are not described in the siibrecipicnt's application, award documents, or approved
budget, and must not use staff, equipment, or other goods or services paid for with grant funds
for such work or activities, without prior written approval by the NHDOJ.

36. Non-suppliaDtation

The subrecipient agrees that grant funds will be used to supplement, not supplant, non-federal
funds that would otherwise be available for the activities under this grant

37. Confldentiality and information sharing

the subrecipient agrees to comply with the provisions of 34 U.S.C. § 12291(b)(2), nondisclosure
of confidential or private information, which includes creating and maintaining documentation of
compliance, ̂ ch as policies and procedures for release of victim information.

The subrecipient also agrees to comply with the regulations implementing this provision at 28
CFR 90.4(b) and "Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) on the VAWA Confidentiality Provision
(34lj.S.C.§ 12291(b)(2))" on the OVW website at
https://www.justice.gov/ovw/resources-and-faqs-grantees. The subrecipient also agrees to ensure
that all subrecipients ("subgrantees") at any tier meet these requirements.

38. Activities that compromise victim safety and recovery or undermine offender
accountability

The subrecipient agrees that grant funds will not support activities that compromise victim safety
and recovery or undermine offender accountability, such as: procedures or policies that exclude
victims from receiving safe shelter, advocacy services, counseling, and other assistance based on
their actual or perceived sex, age, immigration status, race, religion, sexual orientation, gender
identity, mental health condition, physical health condition, criminal record, work in the sex
industry, or the age and/or sex of their children; procedures or policies that compromise the
confidentiality of information and privacy of persons receiving OVW-funded services;
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procedures or pbliciies that impose requirements on victims in order to receive services (e.g., seek
an order of protection, receive coun^iing, participate in couples' counseling or mediation, report
to law enforcement, seek civil or criminal remedies, etc.); procedures or policies that fail to
ensure service providers conduct safety planning with victims; project design and budgets that
fail to account for the access needs of participant with disabilities and participants who have
lim ited English proficiency or are Deaf or hard of hearing; or any other activities outlined in the
solicitation or companion guide under which the application was submitted.

39. Policy for respoiiM to workplace-related incidents of sexual misconduct, domestic violence,
and dating violence

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must'have a policy, or issue a policy within 270
, days of the award date, to address workplace-related incidents of sexual misconduct, domestic
violence, and dating violence involving an employee, volunteer, consultant, or contractor. The
details of this requirement are posted on the OY W web site at
https://www.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions (Award Condition: Policy for response to
workplace-related sexual misconduct, domestic violence, and dating violence), and are
incorporated by reference here.

40. Termination or suspension for cause

The Director of OVW or the NHDOJj upon a finding that there has been substantial failure by
the subrecipient to comply with applicable laws, regulations, and/or the terms and conditions of
the award or relevant solicitation, will tenninate or suspend until satisfied that there is no longer
such failure, all or part of the award, in accordance with the provisions of 28 C.F.R. Part 18, as
applicable mutatis mutandis. The federal regulation providing uniform rules for termination of
grants and cooperative agreements is 2 CFR 200.340.

41. Performance progress reports and final report submission

The subrecipient agrees to provide OVW with specific information regarding siibawards
("subgrants") made under this award. The subrecipient agrees to submit an annual report that
includes: a) an assessment of whether stated goals and Objectives were achieved; b) information
on the effectiveness of activities carried out with grantfunds, including the number of persons
served and the number of persons seeking services who could not be served; c) information on
each subaward made; and d) such other information as OVW may prescribe.

Subrecipients are required to submit this report after the end of each calendar year but no later
than March 15th each year. Recipients and subrecipients must use the designated forms and/or
systems made available by OVW for performance reporting, which identify the information that
recipients and subrecipients must collect and report as a condition of receiving funding under this
award.
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42. Subrecipient program income

Program income, w defined by 2 C.F.R. 200.1, means gross income earned by a non-federal
entity that is directly generated by a supported activity or earned as a result of the federal award
during the period of performance. Without prior approval, program income must be deducted
from total allowable costs to determine the net allowable costs.

In order to add program income to a subaward, subrecipients must seek approval from the
NHDOJ prior to generating any program income. Any program income added to a subaward
must be used to support activities that were approved in the budget and follow the conditions of
the subaward agreement. Any program income approved by the NHDOJ Grants Management
Unit must be reported by the subrecipient to the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit so that it is
reported on the quarterly Federal Financial Report (SF-425) in accordance with the addition
alternative; If the program income amount changes (increases or decreases) during the project
period, the subrecipient must provide approval by the end of the project period.

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in audit findings for both the recipient and
the subrecipient.

43. Subrecipient product monitoring

The subrecipient agrees to be monitored to ensure that materials and products (written, visual, or
sound) developed with OVW formula grant program funding fall within the scope of the grant
program and do not compromise victim safety.

44. Publications disclaimer for STOP Formula subrecipients

The subrecipient agrees that all materials and publications (written, web-based, audio-visual, or
any other format) resulting from subaward activities shall contain the following statement:

'This project m^qs supported by Subgrant No. awarded by the state administering
office for the Office on Violence Against Women, U.S. Department of Justice's STOP Formula
Grant Program. The opinions, findings, conclusions, and recommendations expressed in this
publication/program/exhihition are those ofthe authorfs) and do not necessarily reflect the
vicM's of the state or the U.S. Department of Justice."

\

45. Copyrighted worits

Pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.315(b), the recipient may copyright any work that is subject to
copyright and was developed, or for which ownership was acquired, under this award. OVW
reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise
use the work, in whole or in part (including in the creation of derivative works), for federal
purposes, and to authorize others to do so.

OVW also reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or
otherwise use, in whole or in part (including in the creation of derivative works), any work
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developed by a subrecipient ("subgrantee") of this award, for federal purposes, and to authorize
others to do so.

In addition, the recipient (or subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor of this award at any tier)
must obtain advance written approval from the QVW program manager assigned to this award,
and must comply with all conditions specified by the program manager in connection with that
approval, before: 1) using award funds to purchase ownership of, or a license to use, a *
copyrighted work; or 2) incorporating any copyrighted work, or portion thereof, into a new work
developed under this award.

It is the responsibility of the recipient (and of each subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor as
applicable) to ensure that this condition is included in any subaward, contract, or subcontract
under this award.

46. Consultant compensation rates

The subrecipient acknowledges that consultants paid \yith award funds generally may not be paid
at a rale in excess of $81.25 per hour, not to exceed $650 per day. To exceed this specified
maximum rate, recipients must submit to OVW a detailed justification and have such
justification approved by OVW, prior to obligation or expenditure of such funds.

Issuance of this award or approval of.the award budget alone docs not indicate approval of any
consultant rate in excess of $81.25 per hour, not to exceed $650 per day. Although prior approval
is not required for consultant rates below this specified maximum rate, subrecipients are required
to maintain documentation to support alt daily or hourly consultant rates.

47. Ongoing compllapce with statutory certifications

The subrecipient agrees that compliance with the statutory certification requirements is an
ongoing responsibility during the awani period and that, at a minimum, a hold may be placed on
the subrecipient's funds for noncompliance with any of the requirements of 34 U.S.C. § 10449
(regarding rape exam payments), 34 U.S.C. § i 0449(e) (regarding judicial notification), 34
U.S.C. § 10450 (regarding certain fees and costs), and 34 U.S.C. § 10451 (regarding
polygraphing of sexual assault victims), and 34 U.S.C. 10454 (regarding victim-center
prosecution), and 34 U.S.C. 10446(d)(6)(rcgarding award conditions).

Non-compliance with any of the foregoing may also result in termination or suspension of the
grant or other remedial measures, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

48. Requirements for subrecipients providing legal assistance

The subrecipient agrees that the legal assistance eligibility requirements, as set forth below, are a
continuing obligation on the part of the subrecipient. The legal assistance eligibility requirements
are:

(1) any person providing legal assistance through a program funded under this grant program
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(A) has demonstrated expertise in providing legal assistance to victims of domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking in the targeted population; or

(B) (i) is partnered with an entity or person that has demonstrated expertise described in
subparagraph (A); and (ii) has completed or will complete training in connection with
domestic violence, dating violence, stalking, or sexual assault and related legal issues,
including training on evidence-based risk factors for domestic and dating violence homicide;

(2) any gaining program conducted in satisfaction of the requirement of paragraph (I) has been
or will be developed with input from and in collaboration with a state, local, territorial, or tribal
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking victim
service provider or coalition, as well as appropriate state, local, territorial, and tribal law
enforcement officialis;

(3) any person or organization providing legal assistance through this grant program has
informed and will continue to inform state, local, territorial, or tribal domestic violence, dating
violence, stalking, or sexual assault programs and coalitions, as well as appropriate state and
local law enforcement officials of their work; and

(4) the recipient's organizational policies do not require mediation or counseling involving
offenders and victims physically together, in cases where sexual assault, dating violence,
dorhestic violence, of child sexual abuse is an issue. The recipient also agrees to ensure that any
subrecipient ("subgraniee") at any tier will comply with this condition.

/

50. Due to significant limitations and regulatory differences set forth by Violence Against Women
Act Reaiithorization Act of 2022, P.L, 117-103, funding received from federal fiscal year 2023
STOP Violence Against Women Act formula grant, and federal fiscal years thereafter, must not
be commingled with STOP Violence Against Women Act funding from the 2022 federal fiscal
funding or preceding federal fiscal years.

1^1 o 1 p •Initials:
Page 18 of 35 Date: 12/12/24



EXHIBIT B

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire Department of Justice

(DOJ) as the State Agency for expenses incurred and services provided for victims of

sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimibursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures

described in Exhibit C. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for

reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submined on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days

following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of

compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January I. thefirst quarterly

report is due on April 15'^ or 15 days after the close ofthe first quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation shall be maintained for at least seven (7) years af^er the close of the

Federal Grant.

4. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shaill be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt
shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:

NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

1 Granite Place, South

Concord, NH 03301

(603) 27I-8091or travis.n.tceboom@doj.rih.gov
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- PAYMENTTERMS-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT B.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbur^d within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's
approval of expenditures, Said.payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account
recei vables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampsh ire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not

exceed the price limitation set forth in form G-l section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an ̂ ount not to exceed $93,000 of the

total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval or 1/1/2025,

whichever is later, to 12/31/2025, with approved expenditure reports. This shall

be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

3b. With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the Subrecipient may

apply for an extension of the grant period for up to the end of the federal grant

end date, not after. No extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ in

writing.

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs incurred
under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval, or after 12/31/2025, unless
a grant extension is approved in writing by DOJ.
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-EEOP REPORTING, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES-

I, Peter A. Marr [responsible official], certify that the
Manchester Police, Department [Subrecipiient] has completed the EEO reporting tool certification
within the 1^ two years at; httPs;//oiD.gov/about/ocr/faQ eeop.htm on
10/25/2024 [date]

It is understood that subrecipients which are exempt from filing the EEOP Utilization Report
including non-profits and subrecipients with less than 50 employees must file a declaration
claiming exemption at least once every two years with the Office for Justice Programs; Office of
Civil Rights at the above web address.

EEOP Training Requirements for Subr^ipients

Peter A. Marr [official that completed training] has completed

the EEOP training at https://oiD.gov/about/ocr/ocr-training-videos/video-ocr-training.htm on:

12/06/2023 [date]. The EEOP training must be completed at least once every
two years.

DOJ Discrimination Complaint Process.

If individuals believe they may have been discriminated against by theNH Department of Justice
or by an organizatiori that receives federal funding from the NH Department of Justice based on
their race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation or gender
identity should print and complete a complaint form that can be found at: Civil Rights I Grants
Management Unit I NH Department of Justice

Subreclnient Discrimination Complaint Process

I further certify that the Manchester Police Department [Subrecipient] will comply with
applicable federal civil rights laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the delivery
of services and has a policy of written procedure in place for accepting discrimination-based
complaints from employees and program beneficiaries and that policy/procedure must be made
publicly available to program beneficiaries or prospective beneficiaries.
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Certified Standard Assurances

On behalf of the Subfccipient, and in support of this application for a grant or cooperative
agreement, I certify under penalty of perjury to the U.S. Department of Justice ("Department"),
that all of the following are true and correct:

(1) 1 have the authority to make the following representations on behalf of myself and the
Subrecipient. 1 understand that these representations will be relied upon as material in any
Department decision to make an award to the Subrecipient based on its application.

(2) 1 certify that the Subrecipient has the legal authority to apply for the federal assistance sought
by the application, and that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability (including
funds sufficient to pay any required non-federal share of project costs) to plan, manage, and
complete the project described in the application properly.

(3) I assure that, throughout the period of performance for the award (if any) made by the
Department based oh the application—

a. the Subrecipient will comply with all award requirements and all federal statutes and
regulations applicable to the award;
b. the Subrecipient will require all subrecjpients to comply with all applicable award
requirements and all applicable federal statutes and regulations; and
c. the Subrecipient will maintain safeguards to address and prevent any organizational
conflict of interest, and also to prohibit employees from using their positions in any
manner that poses, or appears to pose, a personal or financial conflict of interest.

(4) The Subrecipient understands that the federal statutes and regulations applicable to the award
(if any) made by the Department based on the.application specifically include statutes and
regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination, and, in addition—

a. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to civil rights will
include section 601 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); section 901 of the Education
Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681); and section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act
of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §6102);
b. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to
nondiscrimination may include section 809(c) of Title I of the Omnibus Crime Control
and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); section 1407(e) of the Victims of
Crime Act of 1984 (34 U.S.C. § 20110(e)); section 299A(b) of the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act.of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § 11182(b)); arid that the grant condition
set oiit at section 40002(b)(13) of the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. §
12291(b)(13)), which will apply to all awards made by the Office on Violence Against
Women, also may apply to an award made otherwise;
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c. the Subrecipient understands that it must require any pass-through subrecipient to
comply with all such applicable statutes (and associated regulations); and
d. oh behalf of the Subrecipient, I make the specific assurances set out in 28 C.F.R. §§
42.105 and 42.204.

(5) The Subrecipient also understands that (in addition to any applicable program-specific
regulations and to applicable federal regulations that pertain to civil rights and
nondiscrimlnation) the federal regulations applicable to the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application may includc/but are not limited to, 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (the
DOJ "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") and 28 C.F.R. Parts 22 (confidentiality - research and
statistical information), 23 (criminal intelligence systems), 38 (regarding faith-based or religious
organizations participating in federal financial assistance programs), and 46 (human subjects
protection).

(6) I assure that the Subrecipient will assist the Department as necessary (and will require
subrecipients and contractors to assist as necessary) with the Department's compliance with
section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (54 U.S.C. § 306108), the
Archeological and Historical Preservation Act of 1974 (54 U.S.C. §§312501-312508), and the
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. §§ 4321 -4335), and 28 C.F.R. Parts 61
(NEPA) and 63 (floodplains and wetlands)^

(7) I assure that the Subrecipient will give the Department and the Government Accountability
Office, through any authorized representative, access to, and opportunity to examine, all paper or
electronic recordsTelated to the award (if any) made by the Department based on the application.

(8) If this application is for an award from the National Institute of Justice or the Bureau of
Justice Statistics pursuant to which award funds may be made available (whether by the award
directly or by any subaward at any tier) to an institution of higher education (as defined at 34
U.S.C. § 10251(a)(17)), 1 assure that, if any award funds actually aremade available to such an
institution, the Subrecipient will require that, throughout the period of performance—

a. each such institution comply with any requirements that are imposed on it by the First
Amendment to the Constitution of the United States; and
b. subject to par. a, each such institution comply with its own representations, if any,
concerning academic freedom, freedom of inquiry and debate, research independence,
and research integrity, at the institution, that are included in promotional materials, in
official statements, in formal policies, in applications for grants (including this award
application), for accreditation, or for licensing, or in submissions relating to such grants,
accreditation, or licensing, or that otherwise are made or disseminated to students, to '
faculty, onto the general public.

(9) I assure that,;if the Subrecijsient is a govemmchtal entity, with respect to the award (if any)
made by the Department based on the application—
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a. it will comply with the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C §§ 4601-4655), >vhich govern the treatment
of persons displaced as a result of federal and federally-assisted programs; and
b. it will comply with requirements of 5 U.S.C. §§ 1501-1508 and 7324-7328, which
limit certain political activities of State or local government employees whose principal
employment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by federal
^sistance.

(10) If the Subrecipienl applies for and receives an award from the Office of Community
Oriented Policing Services (COPS Office), I a^ure that as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10382(c)(l 1),
it will, to the extent practicable and consistent with applicable law—including, but not limited to.
the Indian Self-Determinatibn and Education Assistance Act-seek, recruit, and hire qualified
members of racial and ethnic minority groups and qualified women in order to further effective
law enforcement by increasing their ranks within the sworn positions, as provided under 34
U.S.C. § I0382(c)(ll).

(11) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives a DOJ award under the STOP School Violence
Act program, I assure as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10552(a)(3), that it will maintain and report
such data, records, and information (programmatic and financial) as DOJ may reasonably
require. ^ ^ i .

I acknowledge that a materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement (or concealment or
ornission of a material fact) in this certification, or in the application that it supports, may be the

n Q U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34U.S.C. §§10271-10273), and also may subject me and the Subrecipient to civil penalties and
administfative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C 3729-3730
and 3801-3812). I also acknowledge that the Department's awards, including certifications

its "y

PeterA. Marr Chief of Police
Title of Authorized SIgnor

12/12/2024
Signature Date
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EXHIBIT E

-NON-SUPPLANTING CERTIFICATION-

Supplanting defined

Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not
replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential, presence of supplanting, the Subrecipient or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons

other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written*
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II,
Chapter 3) http://\vww.oiD.usdoi.uov/financialguide/part2/part2chap3.hrm.

Supplanting and iob retention

A recipient or subrecipient may use federal funds to retain Jobs that, without the use of the
federal money, would be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it
must be able to substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be,
but is not limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a

county or municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced
when making,detcrmiinations about employment. The documentation must describe the
terminated positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or
local funds.

The Manchester Police Department (Subrecipient) certifies that any funds awarded through

grant number 202SVAW12 shall be used to supplement existing funds for program activities

and will not replace (supplant) nonfederal funds that have been appropriated for the purposes and

goals of the grant.

Manchester Police Department (Subrecipient) understands that supplanting violations may result

in a range of penalties, including but not limited to suspension of future funds under this

program, suspension or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies provided under

this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Printed Namr^nd-Titkjaf Authorized Sienor: Peter A. Mart, Chief of Police

Signature;. Date 12/12/2024
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EXHIBIT F

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND
OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

REQUIREMENTS

Subrecipients should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which
they are required to attest. Subrecipients should also review the instructions for certification
included in the regulations before completing this form. The certifications shall be treated as a
material representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U.S. Department of
Justice ("Department") determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative
agreement.

1. LOBBYING

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Subrecipient certifies
and assures (to the extent applicable) the following:
(a) No Federal appropriated funds haVc been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b) If the Subreclpient's request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal apjjropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an oiFficer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant^or cooperative agreement, the Subrecipient: shall complete and submit Standard
Form - LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency's) instructions; and

(c) The Subrecipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurement contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
recipients of such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

Initials: A
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EXHIBITF

A. Pursuant to Department regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 G.F;R; Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Subrecipient certifies,
with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier "covered transaction," as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867.20(a), that neither it nor ariy of its principals—
(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a,public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or
transaction;

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, thefl, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction of justice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its.
(or its principals') present responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with corriniission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the Subrecipient is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it
shall attach an explanation to this application. Where the Subrecipient or any of its principals
was convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, the Subrecipient also must disclose such felony criminal
conviction in writing to the Department (fOr OJP Subrecipients, to OJP at
OjpcompIianccreporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Subrecipients, to OVW at
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Subrecipients, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).
unless such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A. If the Subrecipient is a corporation, it certifies either,that (1) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative

remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed,, that is not being paid in a timely manner
pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or
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EXHIBIT F

(2) the corporation has provided written notice Of such an unpaid tax liability (or liabilities) to
the Department (for OJP

Subrecipients, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Subrecipients, to OVW
at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Subrecipients, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

B. Where the Subrecipient is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it
shall attach an explanation to this application.

4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:
A. The Subrecipient certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free
workplace by—

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Subrecipient's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

(c) Making; it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the etnployee will —

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee's conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days afler such conviction;
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EXHIBIT F

(e) Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
siibparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

For GOPS award recipients • COPS Office, 145 N Street. NE, Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs,
ATTN: Control Desk. 810 7th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531.

Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected award;
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d).(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

I f you areunable to sign this certification, you .miist attach an explanation to this
certification. ^ ^

Peter A. Marr Chief of Police
)f Authorized Signpr Title of Authorized Signor

12/12/2024

Signature Date

Manchester Police Department 405 Valley Street Manchester. NH 03103
Name and Address of Agency

Initials: —

Page 29 of 35 Date: 12/12/24



EXHIBIT G

Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act
(FFATA) Compliance

I

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires
Subrecipients of individual Federal grants equal to^ or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or
after October 1, 2010, to report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-
tier sub-grants of $30,000 or more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant
modifications result in a total award equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA
reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (ReportingSubaward and Executive Compensation
Information), DOJ must report the following information for any grant award subject to the
FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title'^ descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (SAM #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross; revenues are from the Federal government, ,
and those revenues arc greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Subrecipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in
which the award or award amendment is made.

The Subrecipienl identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with the
provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282
and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive
Compensation Information), and further agrees to have one of the Subrecipient's
rcpresentative(s), as identified in Sections 1.11 of the Grant Agreement execute the following
Certification:

The below named Subrecipient agrees to provide needed informat
DOJ and to comply with all applicableiprovisions of the Federal F
and Transparency Act.

on as outlined above to

nancial Accountability

Initials:
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EXHIBIT G

Certification

PeterA. Marr Chief of Police

Name of Authorized Signor Title of Authorized Signer

12/12/2024

Signature Date

As the Subrecipjent identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement, I certify that the
responses to the below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The Unique.Enlity iD(SAM) number for your entity is: CNSJJ8B31T48

2.. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (I) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal
contractSj subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2)
$25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, siibcontracts, loans,
grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop
here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the
following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
business of organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986?

^NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop

If the answer toJ3 above b NO, please answer the
following:

5. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in
your business or organization are as follows:
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Certification

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Page 32 of 35
Initials:

Date: 12/12/24



EXHIBIT H

U.$. Department of Justice
OJJice on Violence Against Women

Acknowledgement of Notice of Statutory Requirement to Comply with the
Confidentiality and Privacy Provisions of the Violence Against Women Act, as

Amended

Under section 40002(b)(2) of the Viblerice Against Women Act, as amended (34 U.S.C.
12291(b)(2)), grantees and subgrantees with funding from the Office on Violence Against
Women (OVW) are required to meet the following terms with regard to nondisclosure of
confidential or private information and to document their compliance. By signature on this form,
applicants for grants from OVW are acknowledging that that they have notice that, if awarded
funds, they will be required to comply with this provision, and will mandate that subgrantees, if
any, comply with this provision, and will create and maintain documentation of compliance, such
as policies and procedures for release of victim information, and will mandate that subgrantees,
if any, will do so as well.

(A) In general
In order to ensure the safety of adult, youth, and child victims of domestic violence, dating
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and their families, grantees and subgrantees under this
subchapter shall protect the confidentiality and privacy of persons receiving services.

(B) Nondisclosure
Subject to subparagraphs (C) and (D), grantees and subgrantees shall not—
(i) disclose, reveal, or release any personally identifying information or individual information
collected in connection with services requested, utilized, or denied through grantees' and
subgrantees' programs, regardless of whether the information has been encoded, encrypted,
hashed, or otherwise protected; or
(ii) disclose, reveal, or release individual client information without the informed, written,
reasonably time-limited consent of die person (or in the case of an unemancipated minor, the
minor and the parent or guardian or in the case of legal incapacity, a court-appointed guardian)
about whom information is sought, whether for this program or any other Federal, State, tribal,
or territorial grant prograrh, except that consent for release may not be given by the abuser of the
minor, incapacitated person, or the abuser of the other parent of the minor.
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EXHIBIT H

If a minor or a person with a legally appointed guardian is permitted by law to receive services
without the parent's or guardian's consent, the.minor or person with a guardian may release
inforriiation without additional consent.

(C) Release
If release of information described in subparagraph (B) is compelled by statutory or court
mandate—

(i) grantees and subgrantees shall m^e reasonable attempts to provide notice to victims affected
by the disclosure of information; and
(ii) grantees and subgrantees shall take steps necessary to protect the privacy and safety of the
persons affected by the rel^e of the information.

(D) InformatioD sharing
(i) Grantees and subgranteesmay share—
(I) nonpersonally identifying data in the aggregate regarding services to their clients and
nOnpersonally identifying demographic information in order to comply with Federal, Stale,
tribal, or territorial reporting, evaluation, or data collection requirements;
(II) court-generated information and law enforcement-generated information contained in secure,
governmental registries for protection order enforcement purposes; and
(HI) law enforcement-generated and prosecution-generated information necessary for law
enforcement and prosecution purposes.
(ii) In no circumstances may—
(I) an adult, youth, or child victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking be required to provide a consent to release his or her personally identifying information
as a condition of eligibility for the services provided by the grantee or subgrantee;
(II) any personally identifying information be shared in order to comply with Federal, tribal, or
State reporting, evaluation, or data collection requirements, whether for this program or any
other Federal, tribal, or State grant program.

(E) Statutorily mandated reports of abuse Or neglect
Nothing in this section prohibits a grantee or subgrantee from reporting suspected abuse or
neglect, as those terms are defmed and specifically mandated by the State or tribe involved.

(F) Oversight
Nothing in this paragraph shall prevent the Attorney General from disclosing grant activities
authorized in this Act to the chairman and ranking members of the Committee on the Judiciary of
the House of Representatives and the Cbitunittee on the Judiciary of the Senate exercising
Congressional oversight authority. All disclosures shall protect confidentiality and omit
personally identifying information, including location information about individuals.

(0) Confidentiality assessment and assurances
Grantees and subgrantees must document their compliance with the confidentiality and privacy
provisions required under this section.

(H) Death of the party whose privacy bad been protected
In the event of the death of any victim whose confidentiality and privacy is required to be
protected under this subsection, grantees and subgrantees may share personally identifying
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information or individual information that is collected about deceased victims being sought for
a fatality review to the extent permitted by their jurisdiction's law and only if the following
conditions are met:

(i) The underlying objectives of the fatality review are to prevent future deaths, enhance victim
safety, and increase ofTender accountability.

(ii) The fatality review includes policies and protocols to protect identifying information,
including identifying information about the victim's children, from further release outside the
fatality review team.

(iii) The grantee or subgrantee makes a reasonable effort to get a release from the victim's
personal representative (if one has been appointed) and from any surviving minor children or
the guardian of such children (but not if the guardian is the abuser of the deceased parent), if
the children are riot capable of knowingly consenting.

(iv) The information released is limited to that which is necessary for the purposes of the
fatality review.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I hereby acknowledge that the applicant has received notice
that if awarded funding they will comply with the above statutory requirements. This acknowledgement shall be
treated as a material representation of fact upon which the Department of Justice will rely if it determines to
award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

Peter A. Marr Chief of Police
Typed Name of Authorized Representative Title

Telephone Number 792-5400

12/12/2024

Signature of Authorized Representative Date Signed

Manchester Police Department 405 Valley Street Manchester, NH 03103
Agency Name

Initials:
Page 35 of 35 Date: 12/12/24



In the year Two Thousand and Twenty Four

A Resolution

"Amending the FY2025 Community Improvement Program, authorizing and appropriating
funds in the amount of Ninety- I'hrce l'housand Dollars ($93,000) for the KY2025 CIP 411625
STOP Violence Against Women"

Resoh'cd by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the City of Manchester as fbllon-s;

AVHEREASi the Board of Mayor and Aldermen has approved the 2025 CIP as contained in
the 2025 CIP budget; and

WHEREAS, the 2025 CIP contains all sources of funds to be used in the execution of pro
jects; arid

WHEREAS, the Hoard nf Mayor and Aldermen wishes to appropriate New Hampshire De
partment of Justice, Justice Grant Award funds in the amount of $93,000 for the FY2025 CIP
411625 STOP Violence Against'Women"; i

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the 2025 CIP be amended as follows:

By adding:

F¥2025 CIP 411625 STOP Violence Against Women - $93,000 State

Resolved, that this Resolution shall Uke elTecl upon its passage

Ccitificate of Authority is valid for 30 days.

December 03, 2024. In Board of Mayor and Aldermen. to En rolled.

Mavor

ATrosReciri. Attest. ^— Cltv Clerk
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Risk Manager
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CITY OF MANCHESTER
Office of Risk Management

CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Department of Justice
33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301

Attn: Travis Teeboom

This cdtificate is issued as a matter of mformation only and confers no rights upon the
certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend or alter the coverage within the
financial limits ofRSA 507-B as follows:

Limits of Liability (in thousands 000)

GENERAL LIABILITY Bodily Injury and Property Damage
Each Person , 325

Each Occurrence 1000
• Aggregate 2000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY Bodily Injury and Property Damage
Each Person 325

Each Occurrence 1000

Aggregate 2000
WORKER'S COMPENSATION Statutory Limits

The City of Manchester, New Hampshire maintains a Self-Insured, Self-Funded Program
and retains outside claim service administration. All coverages are continuous until
otherwise notified. Effective on the date Certificate issued and expiring upon completion
of contract Notwithstanding any requirements, term or condition of any contract or other
document with respect to which this certificate may be issued or may pertain, the
coverage afforded by the limits described herein is subject to all the terms, exclusions and
conditions of RSA 507-B.

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATION/CONTRACT PERIOD

Re: For the STOP The Violence Women Act Grant fiom January 1,2025 through
December 31, 2025

Issued the I6th day of December, 2

Risk Manager

One City Hall Plaza • Manchester, New Hampshire 03101 • (603) 624-6503 • FAX: (603) 624-6528
TTY: 1-800-735-2964

E-Mail: koneil@manche5ternh.gov • Website: www.manchesternh.gbv


